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Shareholderss Information

REGISTERED OFFICE

1-McLeod Road, Lahore

Tel: (92-42) 37225015-17
(92-42) 37233515-17

Fax: (92-42) 37233518
(92-42) 37351119

EXCHANGE LISTING

The Atlas Honda Limited (the Company) is listed on Pakistan
Stock Exchange Limited (PSX).

STOCK SYMBOL

The stock code for dealing in equity shares of the Company
at Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited is ATLH.

LISTING FEES

The annual listing fees for the financial year 2016 - 17 were
paid to the PSX and Central Depository Company of Pakistan
Limited within the prescribed time limit.

STATUTORY COMPLIANCE

During the year, the Company has complied with all
applicable provisions, filed all returns / forms and furnished
all relevant particulars / information as required under the
Companies Ordinance, 1984 and allied rules, the listing
requirements and any other relevant laws, rules and
regulations prescribed by the Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan (SECP).

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Date: June 19, 2017
Time: 11:00 A.M.
Venue: Falettias Hotel, 24 - Egerton Road, Lahore.

FINANCIAL CALENDAR

April 2017 Audited annual results for the year ended
March 31, 2017

May 2017 Mailing of annual reports

June 2017 Annual General Meeting

July 2017 Unaudited first quarterly financial results

November 2017 Unaudited half yearly financial results
January 2018 Unaudited third quarterly financial results

DIVIDEND ANNOUNCEMENT

The Board of Directors of the Company has proposed a
final cash dividend of Rs. 18.5 per share (185 %) for the
year ended March 31, 2017 subject to approval by
shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting.

Last year, the Company has paid cash dividend of Rs. 14.5
per share (145%).

DATES OF BOOK CLOSURE

The register of the members and shares transfer books of
the Company will remain closed from June 06, 2017 to June
19, 2017 (both days inclusive).

DATE OF DIVIDEND PAYMENT

The payment of dividend, upon declaration by shareholders
at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting, will be made
on or after June 19, 2017.

Last year, the Company has dispatched the cash dividend
on June 23, 2016 after approval from shareholders at the
52nd Annual General Meeting.

PAYMENT OF DIVIDEND

Cash dividends are paid through dividend warrants
addressed to shareholders whose names are appearing in
the register of members at the date of book closure.
Shareholders are requested to deposit those warrants into
their respective bank accounts.

Atlas Honda Limited 15
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E-DIVIDEND MANDATE (OPTIONAL)

As per the directives issued by the SECP, the shareholders
are provided with the opportunity, to authorize the Company,
to directly credit the cash dividend in their respective bank
accounts. For the aforesaid purpose, the shareholders are
requested to provide duly filled dividend mandate forms,
which are available on the Companyas website. Please note
that this electronic dividend mandate is optional and not
compulsory. In case, the shareholders do not wish that their
dividend is directly credited into their respective bank
accounts, then the same shall be paid to them directly.

WITHHOLDING OF TAX & ZAKAT ON DIVIDEND

As per the provisions of Section 150 of the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001, the withholding tax is deductible at source
on the amount of dividend paid by the Company at the rate
of 12.5% for filers and at the rate of 20% for non-filers.

Zakat is also deductible at source from the dividend at the
rate of 2.5% of the face value of the share, other than
corporate holders or individuals who have provided an
undertaking for non-deduction of zakat.

SHARE TRANSFER SYSTEM

The Companyss shares department is operated by M/s.
Hameed Majeed Associates (Pvt.) Limited. It is managed
by a team of well-experienced professionals and is equipped
with the necessary infrastructure and has in place the
comprehensive set of systems and procedures for
operational activities pertaining to shares and conducting
the Registration function.

Share transfers received at the Share Registrar of the
Company are registered within 30 days from the date of
receipt, provided the documents are complete in all respects.

PROXIES

According to section 161 of the Companies Ordinance,
1984 and Memorandum and Articles of Association of the
Company, every shareholder of the Company who is entitled
to attend and vote at a General Meeting of the Company
can appoint another member as his/her proxy to attend and
vote instead of him/her. Every notice calling a General

16 Annual Report 2017

Meeting of the Company contains a statement that a
shareholder entitled to attend and vote is entitled to appoint
a proxy, who ought to be a member of the Company.

The instrument appointing a proxy (duly signed by the
shareholder appointing that proxy) should be deposited at
the company/share registrar not less than forty eight hours
before the meeting.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

In pursuance of section 158 of the Companies Ordinance,
1984, the Company holds a General Meeting of shareholders
at least once a year. Every shareholder has a right to attend
the General Meeting. The notice of such meeting is sent to
all shareholders at least 21 days before the meeting and
also advertised in at least one English and Urdu newspaper.

All shares issued by the Company carry equal voting rights.
Generally, matters at the general meetings are decided by
a show of hands in the first instance. The voting by show
of hands operates on the principle of "One Member-One
Vote". If majority of the shareholders raise their hands in
favor of a particular resolution, it is taken as passed, unless
a poll is demanded.

WEBSITE OF THE COMPANY

The Company is operating website www.atlashonda.com.pk
containing updated information regarding the Company.
The website contains the financial results of the Company
together with the Companyas profile, the Atlas group
philosophy and products of the Company.

CHANGE OF ADDRESS / E-MAIL ADDRESS

All registered shareholders should send information of
changes of addresses and e-mail address, if any to the
share registrar of the Company:

M/s. Hameed Majeed Associates (Pvt.) Limited.
H.M. House, 7-Bank Square, Shahrah-e-Quaid-e-Azam,
Lahore

Phone: +92 (42) 37235081-82

Fax :+92 (42) 37358817



MARKET PRICE DATA

The nine months comparative analysis of share price of the Company from April to December 2016 and April to December
2015 at PSX, KSE and LSE is presented as follows:

=
Q2
c
)
>
@)
>
(-
®©
Q
=
@)
(@)

PSX KSE LSE
Months High Low High Low High Low
2016-17 2015-16
April 399.79 370.00 409.00 335.00 399.00 335.00
May 397.00 375.00 374.99 343.05 366.00 347.58
June 400.50 362.00 365.00 325.00 355.00 329.55
July 400.00 368.05 354.89 330.00 354.89 334.98
August 460.00 395.00 364.90 325.00 355.00 325.00
September 507.00 458.50 355.00 323.00 355.00 326.01
October 611.75 485.00 361.98 320.05 358.33 326.01
November 620.00 539.00 414.80 362.00 407.11 358.33
December 604.00 560.00 397.50 375.00 397.50 380.50

The three months comparative analysis of share price of the Company from January to March 2017 and January to March
2016 at PSX is presented as follows:

PSX
Months High Low High Low
2016-17 2015-16
January 648.00 567.49 399.00 349.60
February 600.10 556.00 398.99 353.40
March 595.00 552.00 384.99 351.00

Atlas Honda Limited 17
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Chairman’s Review

This has been the Companyss best year with highest ever sales and production volumes. The Company
successfully inaugurated its second assembly line at Sheikhupura plant to meet the challenge of ever-increasing
demand. The Company aims to achieve sustainable growth by undertaking strategic and forward-looking
investments that build on our robust earnings base and meet the rising demand of Honda motorcycles.

| am pleased to present the 53rd Annual Report of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2017.

ECONOMY

Pakistanss economy continued to show signs of promise with improvements seen in most of the economic indicators. The Gross
Domestic Product (GDP) is expected to grow by 5.7% in the financial year 2016-17, compared to 4.7% of last year, the highest during
the past eight years. This growth expectation is driven through Governmentss economic and structural reforms, lower oil prices, better
energy supply and improving law and order situation. On the external front, there has been a strong build up in FX reserves which
has surpassed the record level of USD 23 billion. The strong reserves position has provided an extended period of stability to the
rupee, which remained relatively firm despite weakening of regional currencies. In view of the improved economic outlook, Pakistan
has issued various global bonds, including Eurobonds and Sukuks, all met by strong interest from international capital markets. The
CPI remained stable under 5% due to low commodity prices and stable exchange rates. Keeping the encouraging indicators in
perspective, the SBP has maintained a forty year low policy rate of 5.75% since May 2016. The MSCI decision to reclassify Pakistan
as an Emerging Market together with PSXas divestment to a Chinese consortium, kept the momentum going in the capital market.
This contributed to an overall bullish trend in stock market with index touching an all-time high of 50,192 points.

On the other hand, the current account deficit for the second half of the year 2017 has widened significantly to USD 5.5 billion compared
to USD 1.9 billion during the same period of last year. This is mainly due to deterioration in trade deficit to a level of USD 20.2 billion,
up by 34.6% year on year basis. Exports, which have been on a declining trend, reduced by 3.9% over last year, while imports rose
by 16%, mainly due to CPEC related activity. After years of strong performance, remittances are projected to close with a decline of
around 2% for the year. Tax collections for the half year have also reportedly fallen by 8% against target, making the full year tax
collection target of Rs. 3.6 trillion challenging. Accordingly, the fiscal deficit target of 3.8% for the year 2017 remains ambitious, as it
will require significant reduction in government expenditure.

AGRICULTURE

The agriculture sector continues to improve. The production of major Kharif crops, including cotton, sugarcane, and maize has provided
the much needed impetus to the crop sector during the Kharif season. The output of wheat, being the major Rabi crop, is also expected
to remain close to the last yearas bumper crop of 25.4 million tons. Moreover, improved water situation from January 2017 onwards,
an increase in fertilizer off take by 33%, and higher credit disbursement during Rabi season also indicate better performance. Other
components of agriculture like livestock, fishing and forestry are also showing progressive growth. Resultantly, the demand for consumer
durables has started picking up pace in the rural areas.

LARGE SCALE MANUFACTURING (LSM)

LSM exhibited signs of continued progress and posted growth of 3.9% during first half of financial year 2017. Major contributions came
from food, steel, cement, pharmaceutical and electronics industries. The improvement was primarily driven through accommodating
monetary and fiscal policies, improved energy supplies, better availability of raw materials and rising domestic demand owing to
ongoing CPEC related power and infrastructure projects. In addition, recently announced export package is expected to provide much
needed support to export industries.

THE TWO WHEELER INDUSTRY

The two wheeler industry posted double digit growth and touched an ever-highest level of production. The enhanced economic
fundamentals, better security situation and increasing real incomes reflected in rising demand for consumer durables, including two
wheelers. A strong consumer appetite for motorcycles in both urban and rural areas was the major growth driver. Further, lower fuel
prices, higher trend of urbanization and demographic shift to youth also supported the demand for two wheelers.
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THE COMPANY

The year 2017 was a year of development and outperformance for the Company as it successfully
completed the expansion of its production facility and achieved highest ever results - a move towards
the million club. Continuous efforts to improve processes, maintain quality and reduction in cost has
created the best preconditions for qualitative growth.

MARKETING FOCUS

The Company continues to maintain its leadership at the apex in an intensely competitive industry

Sales Volume landscape. Positive macro-economic conditions, better law & order situation, continued effect of price

(in units) rationalization (of entry level products) together with enhanced capacity resulted in easing customersas

access to mobility and triggered the highest ever demand for Honda bikes. Thus, the Company moved
past the landmark of 920,000 units for the very first time.

920,671

790,441

In the entry segment of 70 cc motorcycles, despite facing strong competition, the Company has witnessed
an overwhelming demand and continues to reap benefits from this segment through its brands «CD 70a
and «CD 70 Dreama. The Company achieved growth of 16% over last year for sales in this category. The
continued momentum from price rationalization was further consolidated by introducing minor model
changes (MMC) in CD 70 and CD 70 Dream. These MMCas provided a successful blend of modern and
traditional features, with an uncompromising everyday usability.

620,329
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015 " 2016 " 2017 Sales of the Companyas product in 100 cc segment, sPridors, remained encouraging and recorded an
increase of 12% over last year. Through this model, the Company continues to provide its customers a
product powered by scommuting with comfort and maximum fuel efficiencys. Econo run competitions, free
checkup camps and other exciting campaigns were carried out to further deepen market penetration in
this category.

Sales Volume

Sale(;s& i(:";"“"slig"r‘?)rgi“ The 125 cc category persistently gained share in the overall motorcycle industry. This was because of

) the shift of customer liking for higher engine displacements and strong urban demand. The Company
maintained its market leadership by offering products that meet customerss expectation in terms of design,
power and functionality. During the year, the Company launched MMC of CG125 which earned positive
feedback from customers.

55,022
64,534

45,772

Increased customer appetite for two wheelers also helped boost spare parts revenue. Both Atlas Honda
=Genuine Partss and sEngine QOila continue to register growth in sales. Progress in this segment was
achieved through innovative marketing ideas, promoting sales through service workshops and a larger
and improved product portfolio. During the year, several advertising and customer care campaigns
addressed the importance of using genuine parts and engine oil for maintaining overall health of motorcycles.
2015 ' 2016 | 2017 These efforts along with a wider distribution network and improved customer accessibility helped to
increase revenue to over Rs. 6.2 billion. However, the unabated influx of illegally sourced spare parts,
continue to pose a major threat to businesses in the organized sector.

4,674
5,646
6,779

Sales W Gross Margin

PERFORMANCE SCORECARD

Profit After Tax

CATE The Company remains committed to deliver on its long term objectives of sustainable growth and
(Rs. in million)

maximizing value creation. These objectives are being achieved by engaging business resources to
develop operational flexibility, optimize cost structure, implement growth projects and strengthen business
foundation.

3,752

3,002

As a result of these efforts, the Company registered net sales of Rs. 64.5 billion, which is 17.3% higher
over the previous year. Improvement in sales translated in increased gross profits for the year ended
March 31, 2017 from Rs. 5.6 billion to 6.8 billion, up by 21.4%. Also, strong contributions came from cost
efficiencies, better sales mix and other operational measures. Sales and marketing expenses rose to Rs.
1.6 billion, a year on year increase of 12.4% which is attributable to higher volumes and spending on
promotional campaigns to support the core business. Other income, net of financial charges, also
S 2015 T 2016 2017 contributed significantly to the bottom line. It crossed Rs. 0.9 billion which is an encouraging 43% higher

Profit After Tax than the comparative year. This was achieved thorough effective treasury management, improved liquidity

2,351
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Earnings Per Share
(Rs. Per Share)

29.03
36.29

22.73

" 2015 | 2016 | 2017

Earnings Per Share

Cash Dividend
(Rs. in million)

1,499
1,913

1,241

" 2015 ' 2016 | 2017

Cash Dividend
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and better equity market performance. As a result, the Company registered ever highest net profit before
tax of Rs. 5.1 billion. Net profit after tax rose to Rs. 3.75 billion from 3.0 billion, an increase of 25% over
last year. This translates into Earnings per Share (EPS) of Rs. 36.29 as against Rs. 29.03 of last year.

Atlas Honda Limited has been a debt free Company for the past six years and incurs no borrowing cost.
Finance cost represents bank charges on transactional cost paid to banks for collection from customers
on behalf of the Company throughout Pakistan. Free cash flow from operations during the year stood at
Rs. 7.8 billion. This has been deployed in capital assets, short term investments and payment of dividend.
Additions to capital assets mainly represent expansion of production facilities and balancing, modernization
and replacement of existing manufacturing facilities.

During the year, the Company contributed an amount of Rs. 14.3 billion to the Government and its agencies
on account of various taxes and levies. The Atlas Group, of which the Company is a constituent member,
contributed Rs. 43 billion in all towards the national exchequer. This makes Atlas Group one of the highest
tax payers in the country with over 1% of Governmentas total revenue.

DIVIDEND POLICY

Over the years, the Company has followed a consistent policy of paying high dividends. Keeping in view,
the cash generating capacities, expected capital needs of business and strategic considerations, the
Board of Directors is pleased to propose cash dividend of Rs. 18.5 per share for the year 2016-17. This
amounts to Rs. 1.9 billion, which is the highest in the Companyas history.

MANUFACTURING EXCELLENCE

A consistent theme across both the manufacturing plants of the Company has been the continuous
improvements in performance through lean manufacturing, seamless supply chain, introduction of new
processes, high quality, cost reduction and greater throughput. These initiatives produced
results and allowed the Company to produce and deliver over 920,000 units in the year.

As part of sustainable development initiatives, the Company has implemented various breakthrough ideas
on energy and fuel consumption which has resulted in savings 4% of energy cost. Also, the results of
«Waste Heat Recoverya for utilizing heat emissions from generators and installation of 360KW solar panels
are helping in reducing the energy bill.

To achieve broader base for its business model and gain flexibility to respond to rising market demand,
the Company decided to put a new assembly line, adjacent to existing line at Sheikhupura Plant. The
project was timely completed without losing a single unit and the first motorcycle rolled off the new line
in September 2016 - one month ahead of the plan. This has helped the Company meet, to an extent, the
challenge of the fast increasing demand.

BUSINESS PROCESS RE-ENGINEERING

The Optimization of processes is vital for success of the Company in the long run. A number of Kaizen
activities were performed during the year. Some of which are listed below:

Renewable energy source enhancement Extension of Waste Heat Recovery to Paint Shop
through installation of Solar Power pretreatment and complete shutdown of Boiler
Localization of LPDC dies & resourcing of Increase in number of Fuel Tanks per hanger in
Tools and Consumables paint shop

Environment Improvement in Die Casting by Productivity Improvement through:

installing Mist Collectors and Spot Cooling - Double cavity, auto spray and auto take out
unit in Die Casting

- Introduction of Tow Cart System




AWARDS
It gives me great pleasure that following awards were received by the Company during the year:

e 1st Position for Best Corporate Report Award in sEngineering Sectora by the Joint Committee of ICAP and ICMAP.
e Top 25 Companies Award by Pakistan Stock Exchange for the financial years 2014 and 2015.
e 4th Position for Best Sustainability Report Award by the Joint Committee of ICAP and ICMAP.

e Awards by National Forum for Environment & Health, for the year 2016, in the categories of Corporate Social Responsibility Report,
Research & Publication and Environment & Waste Management.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

The overall economic environment continues to remain conducive for growth. Availability of energy supplies and improvement in law
and order situation has promoted business climate. There is optimism on the domestic demand owing to higher expected public sector
spending, pre-election year, and greater pace of development projects. The recent trend of external ratings will play a key role in
bringing opportunities for Pakistan. The CPEC is now a reality and is expected to bring significant investments for infrastructure
projects, especially road networks and energy projects. This will have a ripple effect for overall economic growth. However, there
are few indications that the economy may be wavering from its budding stability. There is urgency in the area of tax reforms, where
determined initiatives are needed to contain fiscal deficit and improve tax to GDP ratio significantly. The recent rise in oil prices is a
concern given that the non-oil imports are expected to remain high, while exports are yet to show any recognizable recovery. The
exchange rate will be tested as the repayment phase approaches. On the other hand, bright agricultural prospects and timely supportive
measures by the Government are expected to bring positive results to the economy. The combined effect is expected to sustain the
demand of the two wheeler segment.
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The Company has laid the foundation for long term sustainable leadership and is committed to achieve profitable growth, financial
flexibility and operational excellence. It is passing through a dynamic phase where skills, technologies and scales are being developed
and getting built for this decade and the next. With the increased capacity and improved competitiveness the Company is well
positioned to maintain its market leadership position. The Company will continue to leverage on its experience and expertise to
strengthen its position by following the principles of "The Atlas Way".
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Directors’ Report to Shareholders

The Directors of the Company are pleased to present their report together with the fifty third Annual Report of the Company along
with Audited Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2017.

Operating Results

The operating results of the Company are summarized as follows:

Year ended Year ended
March 31, March 31,
2017 2016

------ (Rupees in 1000) -----

Profit before taxation 5,092,742 4,044,429
Taxation

Current 1,159,131 1,065,822

Prior Years 77,910 (10,461)

Deferred 103,222 (12,731)

1,340,263 1,042,630

Profit after taxation 3,752,479 3,001,799

Dividends and Appropriations

The Directors have recommended a final cash dividend of Rs. 18.5 (2016: Rs. 14.5) per share. Accordingly, the appropriation of profit will
be as under:

Year ended Year ended
March 31, March 31,
2017 2016

------ (Rupees in «000) -----

Profit available for appropriation 5,191,349 3,765,939

Appropriation:

Transfer to General Reserves 1,000,000 830,000

Cash Dividend 185% (2016: 145%) 1,913,022 1,499,396
2,913,022 2,329,396

Un-appropriated profit carried forward 2,278,327 1,436,543

Earnings per Share

The Basic and Diluted earnings per share after tax is Rs. 36.29 (2016: Rs.29.03).

Holding company

Shirazi Investments (Pvt.) Limited, incorporated in Pakistan, is the holding company of Atlas Honda Limited with 52.43% shares.
Chairmanas Review

The Chairmanas review included in the Annual Report deals inter alia with the nature of business, performance of the Company,
explanation of significant deviations from last year, future prospects and uncertainties.
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Board of Directors

The Board comprises of one independent Director, three executive and four non-executive Directors. The Directors of the Company
were re-elected in Extraordinary General meeting of the Company held on March 14, 2017. Subsequent to year end, in April 2017,
Mr. Hiromitsu Takasaki and Mr. Toichi Ishiyama resigned as Directors and Mr. Hirofumi Yada and Mr. Susumu Mitsuishi were appointed
in their places respectively. The Board places on record its appreciation for the valuable contributions made by the outgoing Directors
and welcome the new Directors.

Meetings of the Board and its Committees in 2016-17

During the year, five meetings of Board of Director, four meetings of Board Audit Committee and one meeting of Human Resource
& Remuneration committee were held. The attendance of the Directors and the number of their directorships in listed companies,

including Atlas Honda Limited are as follows: %
k®}
2
Committee Members Attendance Q
it Dl 2lCaidenll) s IZ\?Jadrl‘t:I Remlt-xll?e?ation Mzgtairr‘(;s ?\%%rl(tj Remtlr?ef‘ation (%
Committee| Committee Committee | Committee é
1. | Mr. Yusuf H. Shirazi 4 Re-elected on March 14, 2017 - - 5/5 - %
2. | Mr. Saquib H. Shirazi 4 -do- - % 5/5 - 171 %
3. | Mr. Sanaullah Qureshi 1 -do- v % 4/5 3/4 11 é
4. | Mr. Hiromitsu Takasaki 1 -do- - - 1/5 -
5. | Mr. Abid Naqvi 2 -do- 1% - 5/5 4/4
6. | Mr. Jawaid Igbal Ahmed 2 -do- v 1% 5/5 3/4 11
7. | Mr. Yasutaka Uda 1 -do- - - 5/5 -
8. | Mr. Toichi Ishiyama 2 -do- - - 1/5 - -
Auditors

The retiring auditors M/s ShineWing Hameed Chaudhri & Co. Chartered Accountants, being eligible, offered themselves for re-
appointment. The Audit Committee has recommended their re-appointment as auditors of the Company for the year 2017-18.

Material changes

There have been no material changes since March 31, 2017 to date of the report and the Company has not entered into any
commitment during this period, which would have an adverse impact on the financial position of the Company.

Pattern of Shareholding

The pattern of shareholding of the Company is annexed to this report.

Communication

The Company focuses on the importance of the communication with the shareholders. The annual, half yearly and quarterly reports

are distributed to them within the time specified in the Companies Ordinance, 1984. The activities of the Company are updated on
its web site at www.atlashonda.com.pk, on timely basis.

Safeguarding of Records

The Company puts great emphasis for storage and safe custody of its financial records. The Company is using SAP for recording
its financial information. The access to electronic documentation has been secured through implementation of a comprehensive
password protected authorization matrix in SAP-ERP system.

Business Continuity Plan

As part of Business Continuity Plan, remote disaster recovery sites have been adequately set up for maintaining backup server and
data in case our primary server encounters any issues.
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Human Resource Management

Human resource planning and management is one of the most important considerations with the senior management. The Company
has established a Human Resource and Remuneration Committee which is involved in the selection, evaluation, compensation and
succession planning of key management personnel. It is also involved in recommending improvements in the human resource policies
and procedures and their periodic review. The details of human resource policies are presented in the sSustainability Reports which
forms an integral part of this Annual Report.

Corporate Social Responsibility

The Company considers social, environmental, and ethical matters in the context of the overall business environment. The Company
is committed to work in the best interest of all the stakeholders, in particular the community in which we live and forms our customer
base. The report on Corporate Social Responsibilities, including its approach to health and safety, human resources, social,
environmental and other related issues are presented in the sSustainability Reports, which forms a part of this Annual Report.
Statement of Value Addition and its Distribution and Risk Management

The «Statement of Value Addition and its Distributiona and sRisk and Opportunity Reports are annexed to this report.

Corporate and Financial Reporting Framework

The Directors confirm the compliance with Corporate and Financial Reporting Framework of the Securities and Exchange Commission
of Pakistan and Code of Corporate Governance for the following matters:

e The financial statements, prepared by the management of the Company, fairly present its state of affairs, the results of its operations,
cash flows and changes in equity.

¢  The Company has maintained proper books of accounts.

o Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of the financial statements and accounting estimates
are based on reasonable and prudent judgments.

¢ International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been duly followed in preparation of the financial statements.

e There has been no material departure from the best practices of Corporate Governance, as detailed in the Regulations of Rule Book
of Pakistan Stock Exchange.

o  The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and monitored. The process of monitoring
internal controls will continue as an ongoing process with the objective to further strengthen the controls and bring improvements in
the system.

e  There is no doubt about the Companyas ability to continue as a going concern.

¢  Asummary of key operating and financial data of the Company is annexed.

o Information about taxes and levies is given in notes to the accounts.

o The Company operates a contributory provident fund scheme for all employees and Defined benefit gratuity fund scheme for its
management/non-management employees. The value of investments based as at March 31, 2017 are as follows:

e Provident Fund Rs. 885.07 million
e Gratuity Fund

» Management Staff Rs. 262.15 million

» Non-Management Staff Rs. 86.13 million

On behalf of the Board of Directors
&Q_Eg\\gg'
Saquib H. Shirazi
Karachi: April 28, 2017 Chief Executive Officer
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Sales Volume
(in units)
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Profit After Tax
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Risk and Opportunity Report

=Operating in many different business environments and territories inevitably entails the risks and uncertainties that
are not necessarily within our control. Although we cannot eliminate such risks and uncertainties completely, we have
established risk management and internal control systems and procedures to manage their impact. The board believes
that our risk management and internal control systems will help us to identify such risks and respond in timely manner..

Risk Analysis and Internal Control Framework

This report will cover Companyas strategy formulation methods, opportunity analysis, risk assessment processes and counter measures
thereon. The Company has designed a risk management approach and internal control framework based on its business philosophy
and corporate objectives, which is explained step by step below:

A) Strategy formulation

Management has developed a set of objectives that represent stakeholdersa
expectations and are the lead indicators for determining the success level of
the Company. In order to ensure the achievement of the set objectives,
management adopts certain strategies. These strategies are approved by the
Board of Directors and are subject to change, depending upon any changes
in the external business environment or internal organizational factors.

B) Risk assessment

Businesses face numerous uncertainties that can pose potential threats to
the objectives of the Company and if not addressed, may culminate in loss.
Such uncertainties can arise both from external events as well as internal
factors within the organization. The Company analyses four types of risks,
based on the information collected from various internal and external sources,
which are as follows:

These risks are related to the business environment including the industry and are beyond Companyas

Strategic Risks control.

These risks emanate from commercial substance of the organization and involve decisions which may

Commercial Risks affect Companyas position in the market.

Operational Risks These risks are related to Companyas internal operations, administrative procedures and daily affairs.

Financial Risks These risks are related to financial matters including profitability, financing, liquidity and credit.

Materiality Approach

Materiality is defined by the management as a degree of measure significant to the interests of the Company and its stakeholders.
Determination of when such degree is achieved is a matter of managementas best judgement. A risk is considered material if, in
managementss view, its occurrence is reasonably be expected to prevent the Company from achieving its key objectives and
expectations. All identified risks are measured for their materiality impact and are marked for their relative sensitivity as shown
in Risk and Counter Strategy Matrix (RCSM). The more material the risk, the greater focus is concentrated on development and
monitoring of its counter strategies.

C) Developing counter measures

Upon identification of risk factors, counter measures are devised to mitigate their impacts. The severity of the risk will determine
the criticality of the counter measure and will accordingly set its priority for action. Risks and their related counter strategies are
monitored on continuous basis and evaluated for any changes in related impacts.

The relationship between Companyss objectives, risks and counter strategies is given in the annexed RCSM.
D) Governance

The Board of Directors is responsible for approving Companyas risk management policy. The Board of Directors also provides
guidelines on strategic matters and organizational objectives. The business units are responsible for managing risks at operational
level. However, the Company-level risk management is the responsibility of the Risk Management Function (RMF) which comprises
of the Treasury department. RMF reports its results / findings / observations to the Risk Management Committee. The Committee
regularly reviews the business risk profile, risk management policy, risk assessment procedures, related counter strategies and
also advice on future actions. The Committee then reports the outcomes of their reviews to the CEO. The Board of Audit Committee
also reviews and assesses the adequacy of risk management for its effectiveness in risk mitigation.

E) Opportunity analysis

The Company has adequate processes and procedures in place for identifying potential gaps in the external environment which,
if Company has adequate resource, may be exploited as opportunities to improve performance. Based on its analysis, the Company
has identified the following opportunities in current economic landscape:

Healthy agriculture cash flows will increase liquidity in rural areas
Rising foreign remittances

Increasing population and emerging youth segment

Weak transportation infrastructure
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Risk and Counter Strategy Matrix

The principal risks that could adversely impact our profitabilty and ability to acheive our strategic objectives are set

out below :

INDUSTRY COMPETITION

Corporate objective

To maintain Companyss market leadership in two wheeler automotive industry.

R Type Description Profile
Strateaic There is increasing competition among market participants in the entry level motorcycle
I 9 segment. Further, new players are entering in the premium segment.
S c ial Continued inflation and low prices of agricultural products may affect the
K ommercia purchasing power of customers.

Counter Strategies to Mitigate Risk

Actual Results

The Company is committed to make quality products and meeting
the demand of its customers while enhancing product innovation
and ensuring customer satisfaction to maintain competitive edge in
motorcycle segment. The Company places due emphasis on
monitoring markets and competitors to be able to understand and
pre-empt external dynamics and remain competitive.

The Company has six models covering 70CC, 100CC and 125CC
segment. It is committed to exacting quality standards by ensuring
improved models as per customer preference. Also, it has most
lucrative 2nd hand market ensuring optimum resale value for
customers.

The Company operates the largest dealer network in Pakistan and
most efficient after sales services network.

These along with financial solutions help boosting customer
purchasing power.

Total sales for the year: 920,671 units which represent 16% increase
from last year.

Atlas Honda Limited is the only Company in Pakistan which provides
3 yearss warranty for all engine parts.

The Company has made arrangement with various Banks to promote
consumer and dealer financing services at highly competitive
prices.
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Corporate objective

To operate in a stable market being compliant with all relevant laws of the Country.

Type Description Profile
Strategic Adverse Law and Order situations.
F: Changes and reforms in existing laws & regulations and legal uncertainties.
S Restrictions in the import and export of vehicles and /or parts.
K Commercial
Low entry barriers for new entrants.
Infringement of intellectual property rights.

Counter Strategies to Mitigate Risk

Actual Results

In order to avoid the risk of disruption and fulfill the market demands,
the Company operates two production facilities (one at Sheikhupura
and other at Karachi).

Ateam of qualified and experienced professionals in the management
team ensures compliance with all applicable laws, rules and
regulations. The impact of legislation that has either been enacted
or is likely to be enacted is taken into account in the outlook.

The Company has registered intellectual property marks, copy rights
and designs to distinguish its products with those of competitors,
and have taken measures to protect such property and to prevent
infringement of intellectual property rights.

In order to support the growth of two wheeler industry and protection
of local manufacturers, the Company actively participates at various
Government level forums for recommending appropriate measures.

There were no non-compliances reported by any Government body
or institution during the year.

The Company maintains effective monitoring of its intellectual property
rights through third party consultants. Raids are conducted where
instances of infringement are observed and legal proceedings are
initiated against the counterfeiters.

Companyas corporate reporting practices were recognized through
following awards:

- Best Corporate and Sustainability Report Award by the Joint
Committee of ICAP and ICMAP.

- Best CSR Report Award by National Forum for Environment &
Health.

- The PSX Top 25 Companies award.

Low Medium

High
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Corporate objective

To produce the best and highest quality product that meets international standards of fuel
efficiency, comfort and reliability.

R Type Description Profile
S Strategic Technological shift may render production process obselete and cost inefficient.

Counter Strategies to Mitigate Risk

Actual Results

The Company has in-house facility which regularly monitors any
changes in technology and International standards.

The Company incurs adequate capital expenditure on expansion of
production facilities and balancing, modernization and upgradation
of existing manufacturing facilities.

The Company has incurred Capital expenditure of Rs. 2 billion
during the year for the improvement and maintenance of the production
facilities. Please see Note 5 to the Financial Statements.

OPERATIONS

Corporate objective

To operate in a stable market being compliant with all relevant laws of the Country.

Type Description Profile
F: The Company relies on third parties for sourcing of utilities.
S Commercial Vendorss operational and financial constraints may affect supply of raw materials

and parts used in the manufacturing.

Disruption due to data loss from operational failures or natural disasters.

Counter Strategies to Mitigate Risk

Actual Results

Companyas operations are based on usage of alternative energy
sources. Further, Company has initiated plans for evaluating low
cost and environment friendly options for its energy needs.

The Company has legal contracts in place with all vendors and
continuous assessment of all vendors are made for quality, cost and
timely deliveries.

In order to ensure uninterrupted and smooth supplies of raw material
and components, more than one supplier are inducted which shares
its production and delivery plan on B2B network.

A business continuity plan is in place for ensuring uninterrupted
operations. Production stoppages and downtimes in particular due
to fire, but also to manufacturing and control equipment breakdowns
or transportation and logistical disruptions - pose risks against which
the Company has put suitable measures in place. The broad array
of measures taken includes technical fire protection solutions, land
development measures including contingencies against flooding,
preventative maintenance, stocking of parts and spares on a multi-
site basis, and usage of more than one transporter.

The Company has achieved uninterrupted production during the
year with undisrupted supplies from vendors.

The Company operates a separate Disaster Recovery Site to ensure
continuity of operations.

Regular management audits are conducted to ensure that backup
plans are effectively in place to mitigate any operational interruptions.

Low Medium

High
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HUMAN CAPITAL

Corporate objective

skilled force.

To recruit and retain the best people and provide adequate training to ensure high quality

R Type Description Profile
I Availability of sufficient, qualified and competent staff at all levels.

S Operational

K Operations may be subject to fraudulent activities.

Counter Strategies to Mitigate Risk

Actual Results

The Company has developed comprehensive and well-structured
procedures for recruitment, training, compensation, periodic appraisals
and succession planning in order to ensure staff development and
retention. This environment creates a successful performance culture
and offers people the ideal situation in which to develop their expertise
and skills.

Various local and foreign trainings are organized for staff at all
hierarchical levels in order to enhance their professional skills and
competence for the outstanding career path.

Appropriate internal controls and best governance practices are in
place to prevent and detect fraudulent activities.

An effective internal audit function is also in place.

During the year following number of staff trainings were held:

External Training Programs: 50

Internal Training Programs: 33

No. of Persons trained in external trainings: 129

No. of Persons trained in internal trainings: 360

No. of days spent for trainings: 1,375

No. of hours spent for trainings: 11,000 hours

Average hours of training per year per employee: 8 hours
Average training days per employee: 1.5 days

For Details, please refer people section of sustainability report.

HEALTH AND SAFETY

Corporate objective

To ensure health and safety of employees at workplaces.

R Type Description Profile
| Accidents can take place which can cause serious injuries to employees.

S Operational

K Elements in workplace that are dangerous to human health.

Counter Strategies to Mitigate Risk

Actual Results

The Company recognizes the importance of a healthy working
environment and therefore safety of employees is its top priority.
The Company has developed a documented Health and Safety
Policy according to which it is mandatory for every employee to go
through the Companyas safety awareness program.

The employees are informed about best HSE practices through
regular internal communication channels such as helth and safety
forums and internal safety workshops. Each employee is also trained
to follow safety rules and to exercise caution in all work activities.
We conduct risk assessments that address all the hazards that might
cause harm at workplace.

Regular monitoring of the work place is carried out in order to ensure
that safety equipments are working properly and procedures are
being followed.

Medical and health insurance policies are in place for all the employees

Extraction and evacuation drills are conducted regularly and staff is
frequently trained for crisis management.

No major accidents occurred during the year at any of the
Companyas facilities, a testament to the Companyss effective safety
policies.

Numerous safety and extraction drills were conducted during the
year.

Low Medium

High
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Corporate objective

To ensure environment friendly products and processes.

R Type Description Profile
| Hazardous emissions and gases discharges into air and water beyond the prescribed
limits.
S Operational
K Waste from operations may be disposed off in an inappropriate manner.

Counter Strategies to Mitigate Risk

Actual Results

As per the Companyas defined policy for the protection of environment
from emissions and hazardous discharges, ongoing monitoring and
maintenance activities coupled with investment in new technology,
efficiency enhancing measures, continuous measurements, follow
ups and reporting are carried out to ensure The Company achieves
its desired goals.

Solid hazardous waste is disposed-off through Environmental
Protection Agencyas legitimate contractors.

Recycling is also done, to the maximum extent, where possible.

For achievements in environmental protection, see the section of
"Environment" in the Companyas sustainability report.

FINANCIAL

Corporate objective

To maintain strong financial position and sustainable financial performance which is reflective
of the Companyas scale of business and Shareholderss expectations.

Type Description Profile
R Increase in commaodity prices will increase input costs.
| Payment defaults of counter parties may leave the Company with inadequate resources
. . for discharging its own liabilities.
S Financial
K Devaluation of Pak Rupee against foreign currencies may adversely affect the
Companyas financial performance.
Risk of impairment and decline in profitability of investments

Counter Strategies to Mitigate Risk

Actual Results

Agreements are in place with suppliers to counter short term
fluctuations in material prices.

The Company restricts its credit provisioning to only Government
departments and defence institutions which maintain a good history
of timely payments.

Sufficient credit lines and financial arrangements are available from
various banks to the Company in case sufficient funds are not
generated from operations.

Counterparty risk management procedures are carried out
continuously in order to monitor the credit worthiness of business
partners.

Foreign currency exposures are monitored by the Treasury Committee.
Derivatives such as forward covers and currency options are used
for hedging against currency devaluation when considered necessary.

To detect possible impairment at an early stage, the Company
regularly performs valuations of their investments as well as analyzing
key figures of the business development of each company.

For complete disclosure, kindly refer the disclosure on "Financial
Risk Management" in notes to the financial statements.

The Company has earned Rs. 61 million during the period from its
investment. Please see Note 7 to the Financial Statements.

Low Medium

High
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Notice of 53" Annual General Meeting

Notice is hereby given that the Fifty Third Annual General Meeting of the members of the Company will be held on Monday
June 19, 2017, at 11:00 A.M., at Falettiss Hotel, 24 - Egerton Road, Lahore, to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS
1. To confirm minutes of the Extraordinary General Meeting held on March 14, 2017.

2. To receive, consider and adopt the Annual Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2017,
together with the Directorss and Auditorsa reports thereon.

3. To appoint auditors and fix their remuneration for the year ending March 31, 2018. The present auditors M/s ShineWing Hameed
Chaudhri & Co., Chartered Accountants, retire and being eligible have offered themselves for reappointment.

4.  To consider and approve the final cash dividend of Rs. 18.5 per share i.e. 185% for the year ended March 31, 2017 as
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recommended by the Board of Directors.

5.  To transact any other business as may be placed before the meeting with permission of the Chair.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

6.  To consider, and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as a Special Resolution:

«RESOLVED that the Company may circulate the annual balance sheet and profit and loss account, auditoras report, Directors
report etc. to its members through CD/DVD/USB instead of hardcopy at their registered addressess.

A statement of material facts as required under section 160(1)(b) of the Companies Ordinance, 1984 in relation to this special

business is annexed to this notice of meeting being sent to the members.

By Order of the Board

Karachi: May 29, 2017 Umair Mukhtar
Company Secretary

NOTES:
1. The share transfer books of the Company will remain closed from June 6, 2017 to June 19, 2017 (both days inclusive). The
transfers received at Companyss Share Registrar namely M/S Hameed Majeed Associates (Private) Limited, H.M House,

7-Bank Square, Shahrah-e-Quaid-e-Azam, Lahore, Pakistan by the close of business on June 5, 2017 will be considered in
time for the purpose of payment of final dividend to the transferees.
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2. Amember entitled to attend, speak and vote at this Annual General Meeting shall be entitled to appoint another member, as a
proxy to attend and vote on his / her behalf. The proxies in order to be effective must be received at the Registered Office or
Share Registrar of the Company not less than 48 hours before the time of the meeting. For the convenience of the members
a Proxy Application Form is attached at the end of the Annual Report 2017.

3.  Any individual Beneficial Owner of CDC entitled to attend and vote at this Annual General Meeting must bring the CNIC or
Passport along with his / her CDC account number to prove his / her identity and in case of Proxy, must enclose an attested
copy of the CNIC or Passport. The representatives of Corporate members should bring the Board of Directorsa/ Trusteess
resolution / power of attorney with specimen signature of the nominee (unless it has been provided earlier) at the time of the
meeting. The CDC Account holders will further have to follow the guidelines as laid down in Circular No. 1 dated January 26,
2000 issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP).

4. In compliance with the SECP directives vide SRO 787(1)/ 2014 dated September 8, 2014, soft copies of the Annual Report
2016 are being emailed to the members having opted to receive such communication in electronic format. Other members, who
wish to receive the Annual Report in electronic form, may file an application as per the format provided on the Companyas
website. The members who have provided the consent to receive Annual Report through email can subsequently request a
hard copy which shall be provided free of cost within seven days. However, the Company shall continue to send hard copy to
all other members as per current practice. The members are also requested to intimate any change in their email addresses
on a timely manner, to ensure effective communication.

5. As per the directives by SECP vide its notice number 8(4) SM/CDC 2008 dated April 05, 2013, all shareholders and the Company
are encouraged to put in place an effective arrangement for electronic payment of cash dividend. For this purpose, the members
are requested to provide duly filled Dividend Mandate forms including Name, Bank Account Number, Bank and respective branch
address at the registered address of the Company. The dividend mandate form is available at the Companyas website.

6. The SRO 831(2)/2012 dated July 5, 2012 read with SRO 19(1)/2014 dated January 10, 2014 issued by SECP, requires printing
of CNIC on the dividend warrant, without which no dividend warrant shall be issued. Therefore the individual members who
have not yet submitted photocopy of their valid CNICs, are once again reminded to send the same at the earliest directly to
the Companyas share registrar. The Corporate entities are requested to provide their NTN. Please give folio number with the
copy of CNIC / NTN.

7. Pursuant to the provisions of Finance Act, 2016, different rates are prescribed for deduction of withholding tax on the amount
of dividend paid by the companies, as under:

«Filers of Income Tax Return 12.5%

sNon - filera of Income Tax Return | 20.0%

The sFilera is defined as a taxpayer whose name appears in the Active Tax-payers List (ATL) issued by Federal Board of Revenue
(FBR) from time to time. To enable the Company to withhold tax at 12.5% for filers, all the shareholders are advised to ensure
that their names appear in the latest available ATL on FBR website, otherwise tax on their cash dividend will be deducted at
20% for non-filers.

8.  As per FBRas clarification, the valid exemption certificate under section 159 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 is mandatory
to claim exemption of withholding tax under clause 47B of part IV of 2nd Schedule of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. Those
who fall in the category mentioned in the aforesaid clause must provide valid tax exemption certificate to our share registrar,
otherwise tax will be deducted on dividend amount as per rates prescribed in Section 150 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.
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9. Incase of joint shareholder, each shareholder is to be treated individually as either a filer or non-filer and tax will be deducted
on the basis of shareholding of each shareholder as may be notified by the shareholders, in writing as follows, to our share
registrar, or if no such notification is received each shareholder shall be assumed to have an equal number of shares:

Principal Shareholder Joint Shareholder
Folio/ Total i i
DS Shares Name & Sharehlc’)tlldlng Name & Sharehotl.dlng
CNIC No. proportion CNIC No. proportion
(no. of shares) (no. of shares)

The required information must reach the shares registrar of the Company by the close of business on June 05, 2017 otherwise
it will be assumed that the shares are equally held by Principal shareholder and Joint shareholder(s).

STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 160 (1)(b) OF THE COMPANIES ORDINANCE, 1984

ITEM NO. 6 OF THE AGENDA
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To give effect to the notification vide SRO 470(1)/2016 of the SECP, shareholderas approval is sought to allow the Company to
circulate its Annual Report through CD/DVD/USB to all members. The Company however, shall place on its website a standard

request form to enable those members requiring a hardcopy of the Annual Report instead of through CD/DVD/USB, to intimate
the Company of their requirement.
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6 Years at a Glance

Particulars 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
Profitability Ratios
Gross profit margin % 10.5 10.3 10.2 9.5 8.7 7.3
Profit before tax margin % 7.9 7.4 7.1 6.0 52 43
Net profit margin % 5.8 5.5 5.1 4.5 3.8 3.2
Return on capital employed % 39.7 37.1 37.9 37.2 36.9 32.3
Return on equity - before tax % 42 36.8 35.1 34.0 33.7 29.9
Return on equity - after tax % 30.9 27.3 254 25.3 245 22.2
Return on assets % 16.3 14.7 14.9 13.9 13.4 11.0
Earnings before interest,

tax, depreciation and

amortization (EBITDA) Rs. In million 5,905.9 4,753.4 3,898.4 3,329.2 2,831.9 2,122.6
EBITDA margin % 9.2 8.6 8.5 7.5 6.7 5.6
Equity Ratios
Cash dividend per share (declared) Rs. 18.50 14.50 12.0 10.0 7.5 6.5
Stock dividend per share (bonus shares
declared for the year) Rs. - - - - 25 1.5
Bonus shares declared for the year No. in «000 - - - - 20,681 10,790
Earning per share Rs. 36.29 29.03 22.73 19.36 19.44 16.74
Price earning ratio Times 15.42 13.26 14.60 15.1 9.9 8.5
Market price per share for the year Rs. 559.7 385.0 335.0 292.6 191.5 142.2
- maximum value Rs. 620.0 414.8 405.3 299.0 192.0 160.0
- minimum value Rs. 362.0 320.1 209.0 171.0 114.0 108.0
Break up value per share Rs. 128.2 106.4 89.3 76.5 79.3 75.3
Dividend yield % 3.3 3.8 3.6 3.4 5.2 5.6
Dividend cover Times 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.9 2.1
Dividend pay out % 51.0 49.9 52.8 51.7 515 47.8
Plough back ratio % 49.0 50.5 47.2 48.3 48.5 52.2
Weighted average cost of debt % - - - - - -
Cost of equity % 0.0 7.5 6.8 6.6 10.1 11.8
Efficiency Ratios
Assets turnover Times 2.8 2.7 29 3.1 35 3.5
Fixed assets turnover Times 9.3 9.5 9.2 9.8 9.6 9.6
Inventory turnover Times 23.0 22.3 19.7 16.5 15.1 14.0
Debtors turnover Times 104.8 83.8 65.0 85.5 82.2 63.5
Creditors turnover Times 5.6 6.9 71 7.2 8.5 7.3
Capital employed turnover Times 4.9 5.0 5.0 6.2 6.5 7.0
Operating Cycle
Period of inventory holding Days 17 17 18 22 24 26
Period of collection from debtors Days 4 4 6 4 4 6
Period of payments to creditors Days (69) (53) (51) (51) (44) (50)
Operating cycle Days (48) (32) (27) (25) (16) (18)
Liquidity / Leverage Ratios
Current ratio Times 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.5
Quick ratio Times 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.3 1.1 0.9
Debt to equity / financial leverage ratio Times = - - - - -
Total liabilities to equity Times 0.93 0.85 0.71 0.82 0.83 1.00
Interest cover Times 4,266.28 3,400.3 3,862.5 5,651.0 2,577.3 427.9
Operating leverage ratio % 149.9 122.2 709.0 427.9 317.2 52.8
Cash to current liabilities Times 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.6 0.4
Cash flow from operations to sales % 10.0 10.0 6.1 7.9 5.2 45
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Graphical Presentation

Our Performance over the Year

The Companyas distinguished performance in its operations is attributable to the effective management of controllable factors, measured against Key
Financial Indicators. This has resulted in accumulation of greater financial strength and continue to growth sustainably over the course of time.

Sales & Gross Profit

Return on Investment & Profit After Tax

Sales: Rs. 65 Billion
Gross Profit: Rs. 6.8 Billion
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Highest ever Sales Revenue | +1 7% T

The Company remained focused towards delivering upon its objective of sustainable
growth through value creation. The momentum of increasing sales continued
during the year in review as well on account of positive market performance. It
resulted in acheivement of CAGR of 11% over the six years period.

Highest ever Gross Profit +20% T

Looking at trends over past six years, the impact of increased sales volume
coupled with cost efficiencies, better sales mix and operational improvements
resulted in the Company reaching the highest ever gross profit of Rs. 6.8 billion
(20% increase from last year). Consequently, CAGR reached at 20% over past
six years.

Profit After Tax: Rs. 3.8 Billion
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Profit after Tax | +25% T

A strong topline along with diligent cost management and effective treasury
operations has allowed the Company to reach ever highest profit after tax of Rs.
3.8 billion (25% increase from last year). This yields a CAGR of 26% over the six
year period.

Higher return on investment

Stronger growth and optimum capital structure has enabled the Company to
generate higher returns on assets and equity for 2016-17, the return on equity
and assets recorded at 30.9% and 16.3%, respectively.

Dividend

Shareholderss Equity

Dividend: Rs. 1.9 Billion
Earning per Share: Rs. 36.3
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High Dividends for shareholders +28% T

The Company believes in having stronger bonds with its shareholders through
provision of adequate returns against their investment in the Company. Keeping
in view the Companyss cash position, expected capital needs and other future
strategic decisions, the Board of Directors proposed a cash dividend of Rs.18.5
per share amounting to Rs.1.9 billion, and yielding a dividend payout ratio of 51%.
This remains as the ever highest dividend announced in the Companyas history.

Increasing EPS +25% T

Increasing profitability of the company has resulted in increasing Earnings Per
Share (EPS) over the years. The Company achieved highest ever EPS of Rs.
36.3 per share.
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Equity: Rs. 13 Billion
Breakup value per Share: Rs. 128.2
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Highest ever Shareholders Equity +21%T

The Company has set the goal of improving financial soundness by consolidating

its shareholdersa equity. The goal eclipsed by achieving the record shareholdersas
equity which stood at Rs. 13 billion. The stronger equity would play its positive

role in the Companyas future course of expansion. The equity position generated
a CAGR of 20% over the six years period.

Breakup value per share +20% T
The breakup value per share stood at Rs. 128.2. It provides a strong financial
base supporting the implementation of the Companyas growth strategy.



Liquidity Ratios

Leverage Ratio

Cash & cash equivalents: Rs. 7.1 Billion
Investments: Rs. 7.1 Billion
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Strong Liquidity | +33% T

The Company continued to grow stronger in Liquidity with cash and bank balances
standing at an impressive Rs. 7.1 billion. Higher liquidity allows the Company
to finance its capital needs and remain stronger in its treasury operations.
Furthermore, the Companyas investments in mutual funds grew by 20% reaching
upto Rs.7.1 billion. This investment resulted in the Company earning Rs. 0.92
billion as treasury income.
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M Liabilities to Assets

Debt free status

In formulation of a sound capital structure, the Company devised a straregy moved
to avoid gearing in its balance sheet. Over the course of six years, the Company
has managed a Debt Free status despite growing financial needs for capital
investments. During the year, the Company financed all its projects through equity.

Cash Operating Cycle

Fixed Assets & Capital Expenditures

Cash Operating Cycle: 48 Days
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Working Capital Performance +53% T

To drive strong cash flow generation, the Company is optimizing its balance sheet,
specifically by reducing the level of working capital and steady cash flow
management. Accordingly the Company has always sought to efficiently use the
various components of working capital cycle. Cash flow operating cycle has
followed the same trend of previous years and the Company continued to work
on favourable operating cycle. Resultantly, the Company has managed to control
the receivables and reduce the inventory turnover. Thereby, the operating cycle
has improved by 8% over the previous year.

Fixed Assets: Rs. 7.0 Billion
Capital Expenditure: Rs. 2.0 Billion
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Increased Investments +23% T

From 2012 to 2017, the Company has made gross investment of Rs 8.2 billion.
Additions to capital assets mainly represents expansion of production facilities
and balancing, modernization and replacement of existing manufacturing facilities.

Fixed Asset Base |+20% T
Keeping in view the further prospects, the Company is investing in its production
facilities, step by step. Currently, fixed assets stood at Rs. 7 billion with equity to
fixed asset ratio of 1.90 times
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Analysis of the Financial Statements
Balance Sheet

Particulars 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012

Rupees in :000
Assets

Non Current Assets

Property, plant & equipment 6,961,919 5,817,700 4,982,552 4,552,816 4,421,744 3,941,610
Intangible asset 37 5,379 12,774 4,781 5,555 6,419
Long term investments 292,342 245,508 216,283 - - -
Long term loans and advances 30,108 28,027 27,198 26,396 25,583 20,420
Long term deposits 17,339 14,937 12,986 9,632 8,399 15,728
Total non current assets 7,301,745 6,111,551 5,251,793 4,593,625 4,461,281 3,984,177
Current Assets

Stores,spares and loose tools 539,104 489,415 421,339 400,424 390,250 348,639
Stock in trade 2,123,831 1,863,482 1,660,529 2,042,602 2,171,536 2,161,328
Trade debts 623,331 608,420 704,597 520,321 514,742 598,265
Loans and advances 38,921 35,877 41,235 35,305 33,253 33,152
Trade deposits and prepayments 120,562 64,770 59,568 50,679 47,722 44,832
Short term investments 7,080,669 5,876,554 4,119,696 3,691,241 1,635,183 1,460,580
Accrued mark-up/interest 21,470 16,842 10,857 11,130 11,603 4,348
Other receivables 6,627 4,910 3,674 4,666 6,302 15,338
Taxation-net 732,706 542,121 99,185 - 2,578 160,604
Bank balances 7,053,784 4,755,020 3,409,200 2,843,738 2,739,988 2,149,154
Total current assets 18,341,005 14,257,411 10,529,880 9,600,106 7,553,157 6,976,240

Non Current Assets Classified as
Held for Sales - - - 171,459 - -

Total assets 25,642,750 20,368,962 15,781,673 14,365,190 12,014,438 10,960,417

Equity & Liabilities

Equity

Share capital 1,034,066 1,034,066 1,034,066 1,034,066 827,253 719,350
Reserves 12,223,467 9,968,057 8,204,479 6,879,247 5,732,907 4,700,584
Total equity 13,257,533 11,002,123 9,238,545 7,913,313 6,560,160 5,419,934
Non Current Liabilities

Compensated absences 228,443 214,620 - - - -
Deferred taxation 670,968 566,749

Long term borrowings - - - - - -
Deferred liabilites - - 773,394 829,600 866,975 730,315
Total non current liabilities 899,411 781,369 773,394 829,600 866,975 730,315

Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables 11,485,806 8,585,470 5,769,734 5,577,694 4,587,303 4,810,168
Accrued mark-up / interest - - - - - -
Current portion of long term borrowings - - - - - -

Taxation - net - - - 44,583 - -
Total current liabilities 11,485,806 8,585,470 5,769,734 5,622,277 4,587,303 4,810,168
Total equity and liabilities 25,642,750 20,368,962 15,781,673 14,365,190 12,014,438 10,960,417
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Analysis of the Financial Statements
Balance Sheet

Vertical Analysis Horizontal Analysis —
Particulars 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
Vs Vs Vs Vs Vs Vs
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
% % % % % % % % % % % %
Assets
Non Current Assets
Property, plant & equipment 271 286 316 317 36.8 36.0 19.7 16.8 9.4 3.0 12.2 20.9
Intangible asset 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.0 00 01 -99.3 -579 1672 -139 -135 -101
Long term investments 1.2 1.2 1.4 - - - 19.1 13,5 100.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Long term loans and advances 0.1 0.1 02 02 0.2 0.2 7.4 3.0 3.0 3.2 25.3 -8.9
Long term deposits 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 16.1 150 348 147 -46.6 46.1
Total non current assets 285 300 333 320 371 364 195 164 143 3.0 120  20.8
Current Assets
Stores,spares and loose tools 2.1 2.4 27| 2.8 3.2 3.2 102 16.2 5.2 2.6 11.9 7.0
Stock in trade 8.3 9.1 10.5(| 14.2| | 18.1| | 19.7 140 122 -18.7 -5.9 0.5 7.9
Trade debts 24 3.0 45(| 3.6 43|| 55 25 -136 354 11 -140 490
Loans and advances 0.2 0.2 0.3|| 0.2 0.3 0.3 85 -13.0 16.8 6.2 0.3 -1.1
Trade deposits and prepayments 0.5 0.3 04|l 04 04|| 04 86.1 87 175 6.2 6.4 21.4
Short term investments 276| | 28.9|| 26.1|| 25.7| | 13.6| | 13.3 205 426 11.6 1257 12.0 9.1
Accrued mark-up/interest 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 275 55.1 25 -41 1669 -48.9
Other receivables 0.0 0.0 0.0|| 0.0 0.1 0.1 350 336 -21.3 -26.0 -58.9 1.7 1)
Taxation-net 2.8 2.7 0.6 - 0.0 1.5 35.2 446.6 100.0 -100.0 -98.4 136.0 <
Bank balances 27.5| | 23.3|| 21.6|| 19.8| | 22.8| | 19.6 483 395 199 3.8 275 2.8 %
2
Total current assets 715 700 66.7 66.8 629 636 286 354 9.7 2741 8.3 10.4 T
@
Non Current Assets Classified as 8
Held for Sales - - - 1.2 - - -100.0 -100.0 -100.0 100.0 0.0 0.0 g
=
Total assets 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 25.9 29.1 9.9 196 9.6 13.9
Equity & Liabilities
Equity
Share capital 4.0 5.1 66 7.2 69 6.6 0.0 0.0 0.0 250 15.0 15.0
Reserves 47.7 489 52.0 479 477 429 226 215 19.3 200 22.0 17.6
Total equity 51.7 540 585 551 546 495 20.5 191 16.7 20.6 21.0 17.3
Non Current Liabilities
Compensated absences 0.9 1.1 - - - - 6.4 100.0 - - - -
Deferred taxation 2.6 2.8 - - - - 18.4 100.0 - - - -
Long term borrowings = - - - - - 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Deferred liabilites - - 49| 5.8 72| | 6.6 0.0 -100.0 -6.8 -4.3 18.7 12.5
Total non current liabilities 3.5 3.8 49 58 7.2 6.6 1511 1.03 -6.8 -43 18.7 12.5
Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables 448| | 42.1|| 36.6(| 38.8| | 38.2| | 43.9 33.8 4838 34 216 -4.6 13.0
Accrued mark-up / interest - - - - - - 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 -100.0
Current portion of long term borrowings - - - - - - 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 -100.0
Taxation - net - - - 0.3 - - 0.0 0.0 -100.0 100.0 0.0 0.0
Total current liabilities 448 421 366 39.1 382 439 33.8 488 26 226 -4.6 10.6
Total equity and liabilities 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 25.9 29.1 99 196 9.6 13.9
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Analysis of the Financial Statements
Profit and Loss Account and Cash Flow Statement

Particulars 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012

(Rupees in «000)

Profit and Loss Account

Sales 64,534,021 55,022,415 45,772,177 44,478,713 42,325,242 38,011,857
Cost of sales (57,754,987) (49,376,506)  (41,098,571) (40,253,929) (38,646,049) (35,235,893)
Gross Profit 6,779,034 5,645,909 4,673,606 4,224,784 3,679,193 2,775,964
Sales and marketing expenses (1,630,773) (1,456,152) (1,314,231) (1,293,938) (1,206,648) (965,883)
Administrative expenses (602,343) (499,915) (432,622) (430,054) (387,477) (335,654)
Other income 916,333 637,074 543,924 420,651 322,668 274,453
Other operating expenses (404,740) (310,682) (245,132) (223,989) (190,453) (117,162)

Share of profit of an Associated

Company - net of tax 61,084 43,475 26,283
Profit from operations 5,118,595 4,059,709 3,251,828 2,697,454 2,217,283 1,631,718
Finance cost (25,853) (15,280) (8,190) (8,036) (9,726) (11,717)
Profit before taxation 5,092,742 4,044,429 3,243,638 2,689,418 2,207,557 1,620,001
Taxation (1,340,263) (1,042,630) (892,747) (687,858) (599,753) (415,892)
Profit after taxation 3,752,479 3,001,799 2,350,891 2,001,560 1,607,804 1,204,109

Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows from
operating activities 6,435,417 5,523,178 2,808,104 3,531,566 2,208,740 1,720,597

Cash flows from
investing activities (2,643,558) (2,947,543) (1,216,243) (2,813,658) (1,154,675) (1,171,217)

Cash flows from
financing activities (1,493,095) (1,229,815) (1,026,399) (614,158) (463,231) (491,026)

Net increase / (decrease)

in cash & cash equivalent 2,298,764 1,345,820 565,462 103,750 590,834 58,354

52 Annual Report 2017



Analysis of the Financial Statements
Profit and Loss Account and Cash Flow Statement

Vertical Analysis Horizontal Analysis
Particulars 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
Vs Vs Vs Vs Vs Vs
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
% % % % % % % % % % % %
Profit and Loss Account
Sales 100.0 1000  100.0 100.0 100.0  100.0 17.3 20.2 29 5.1 113 169
Cost of sales (89.5)  (89.7) (89.8) (90.5) (91.3) (92.7) 17.0 20.1 2.1 42 9.7 174
Gross Profit 10.5 10.3 10.2 9.5 8.7 73 20.1 20.8 10.6 14.8 325 137
Sales and marketing
expenses (2.5) (2.6) (29 (29 (29 (2.5) 12.0 10.8 1.6 7.3 249 184
Administrative expenses (0.9 0.9 0.9  (1.00 (0.9 (0.9) 20.5 15.6 0.6 1.0 15.4 8.0
Other income 14 1.2 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.7 43.8 17.1 29.3 30.4 17.6 8.3
Other operating expenses (0.6) (0.6) (0.5) (050 (0.4) (0.3) 30.3 26.7 9.4 17.6 62.6 6.9
Share of profit of an
Associated Company 0
- net of tax 0.1 0.1 0.1 - - - 40.5 65.4 100.0 %
=
Profit from operations 7.9 74 71 6.0 5.2 43 26.1 24.8 20.6 21.7 35.9 8.5 D
I
Finance cost (0.0) (0.0) (0.00 (0.00 (0.0 (0.0) 69.2 86.6 1.9 (17.4)  (17.0) 875 %‘
c
Profit before taxation 79 7.4 7.1 6.0 5.2 43 25.9 24.7 20.6 21.8 36.3 149 _E
I
Taxation (2.1) (1.9 (20) (15 (14 (1.1) 28.5 16.8 29.8 14.7 44.2 2.0
Profit after taxation 5.8 5.5 5.1 45 3.8 3.2 25.0 21.7 17.5 245 33.5 20.1
Cash Flow Statement
Cash flows from
operating activities 280.0 4104 4966 34039 3738 2,948.6 16.5 96.7 (20.5) 59.9 284 (19.9)
Cash flows from
investing activities (115.0)0  (219.0) (215.1) 2,711.9 (195.4) (2,007.1)  (10.3) 142.3 (56.8) 1437 (1.4) 1823
Cash flows from
financing activities (65.0)  (91.4) (181.5) (592.0) (78.4) (841.5) 214 19.8 67.1 32.6 (57) 535
Net increase / (decrease)
in cash & cash equivalent 100.0 1000  100.0 100.0 100.0  100.0 70.8 138.0 445.0 (82.4) 9125  (87.0)
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Statement of Value Addition and its Distribution

Value Addition
Net sales including sales tax
Other operating income

Bought in materials and services

Value Added

Value Distribution

To Government

Income tax, sales tax, custom & excise duties,
workers funds, EOBI & social security contribution
and local taxes

To Employees
Remuneration & benefits

To Society
Donations

To Providers of capital
Financial charges to providers of finance

Dividends for shareholders

Retained for re-investment and future growth

Total Value Distributed
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Year ended March 31

% 2017 % 2016
(Rupees in s000)

98.79% 74,582,982 99.01% 63,579,041
1.21% 916,333 0.99% 637,074
100.00% 75,499,315 100.00% 64,216,115
-71.37% (53,882,890) -72.09%  (46,295,023)
28.63% 21,616,425 27.91% 17,921,092
63.26% 13,673,738 63.41% 11,364,210
15.38% 3,325,580 15.74% 2,821,511
0.31% 67,349 0.26% 47,436
0.00% - 0.00% 341
8.85% 1,913,022 8.37% 1,499,396
12.20% 2,636,736 12.21% 2,188,198
100.00% 21,616,425 100.00% 17,921,092




Quarterly Performance Analysis
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Sales =

Rs.64.5Billion

—very Quarter Counts

Sales

The Company witnessed an increasing sales trend in
every quarter of the fiscal year. The reduction of prices
in 70cc category provided an impetus to the increase
in demand. Positive macro-economic conditions, better
law & order situation, continued effect of price
rationalization (of entry level products) together with
enhanced capacity resulted in easing customerss access
to mobility and triggered the highest ever demand for
Honda bikes. Thus, the Company has achieved ever
highest sales of over 920,000 units for the very first
time.

Gross Profit

The Company achieved increasing gross profits during
the year in line with the increasing sales trend. Inclining
sales resulted in increased gross profit quarter by quarter.
Furthermore, strong contributions came from cost
efficiencies, better sales mix and other operational
measures. Overall, gross profit is recorded at 10.5%
and reflecting an increase of 20% from last year.

Profit Before Taxation

PBT followed similar trend as that of Gross Profit. An
impressive topline has driven the bottom line figure
which has shown a healthy increase as profit before tax
stood at Rs 5.1 hillion, an increase of 26% as compared
to last year.Furthermore, effective controls over operating
expenses and higher treasury income enabled the
Company to arrive at Profit Margin of 7.9%.

Profit After Taxation

Net Profit after tax increased to Rs. 3.8 billion, an
increase of 25% from last year. The improving profitability
generated an EPS of Rs. 36.29 per share which is the
highest ever in the Companyss history.
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Share Price Sensitivity Analysis

During the financial year ended March 31, 2017, the Companyas share price increased from Rs. 377.9 to Rs. 559.71, delivering a
price return of 48%. Further, the Company reported profit after tax (PAT) for the year amounting to Rs. 3.75 billion and earnings per
share (EPS) of Rs. 36.29, which is 25% higher than that of the same period last year. Factors that contribute to the performance of
the Company which in turn reinforce the investorsa confidence & interest in the Company include:

Agriculture 00

Agriculture accounts for about 24% of the countryss Gross
Domestic Product (GDP) and employs almost half of the labor
force. Therefore, the performance of the Company is thoroughly
dependent on the performance of this sector. Agricultural growth
is contingent on crop acreage, weather conditions, availability
of irrigation water & farm inputs, and support prices. These
factors, when favorable, boost farmersa earnings which results
in rise in motorcycle sales.

Law and Order o

Poor law and order situation results in disruption of business
activities. Transportation strikes, sit-in protests, hindrance in
supply chain and limitations on publicas use of motorcycles
negatively affect Companyas sales. However, operations against
criminals and strict measures by law enforcement agencies help
in subsiding security concerns which uplifts the Companyas
performance.

Plant Operations 000

Smooth and un-interrupted operation of plants leads to higher
production with minimum wastage of resources. Accordingly,
interruptions at production facilities negatively affect the financial
performance of the Company and therefore, the share price.

Capital and Money Markets

The Companyss short term investments stood at Rs. 7,081
million as at March 31, 2017 which mainly comprise of those in
open-ended mutual funds. These funds largely invest in capital,
money market and equity instruments. Trends in these markets
determine the Net Asset Value (NAV) of these funds and as a
result, also affect the Companyas financial performance.

Energy Crisis o

Availability of gas and electricity is crucial for survival and
performance of the manufacturing segment in the country.
Disrupted supply of gas and electricity forces businesses to
resort to expensive alternatives, like diesel generators, which
directly affects the Companyas financial performance.

Exchange Fluctuations 00

Volatile exchange rates can put operations of the Company at
arisk as it heavily relies on imports of plant and machinery, raw
materials, motorcycle parts and other related items. If Pak Rupee
weakens against US Dollar and Japanese Yen, it directly affects
the Companyas profit.

Material Price Volatility 00

The Company uses various materials, such as steel, aluminium,
paints, in production of motorcycles. Being a manufacturing
concern, purchases of raw material forms a major chunk of the
total costs incurred by the Company every year. Therefore, any
adverse movement in material prices can trim the gross profit
of the Company which in turn may affect the share price.

Interest Rates

Based on Companyss strong liquidity position, the Company has
maintained bank balances in saving accounts and term deposit
receipts which stood at Rs. 6,655 million as on March 31, 2017.
With a debt-free balance sheet, rise or decline in interest rates
improves or deteriorates Companyass treasury income,
respectively. Such changes in interest rates affect the Companyas
financial performance and may also result in fluctuation of the
share price.

Sensitivity Index

Low Medium

Atlas Honda Limited Market Performance Summary
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Statement of Compliance with the Code of
Corporate Governance

This statement is being presented to comply with the Code of Corporate Governance (the Code) contained in Regulation No. 5.19
of the Rule Book of Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited for the purpose of establishing a framework of good governance, whereby a
listed company is managed in compliance with best practices of corporate governance.

The Company has applied the principles contained in the Code in the following manner:
1. The Company encourages the representation of independent non-executive Directors and Directors representing minority

interests on its Board of Directors. At present, the Board includes one independent Director, three executive and four non-
executive Directors.

Category Names
Independent Director Abid Naqvi
Executive Directors Saquib H. Shirazi

Yasutaka Uda
Hirofumi Yada

Non Executive Directors Yusuf H. Shirazi
Susumu Mitsuishi
Sanaullah Qureshi
Jawaid Igbal Ahmed

The independent Director meets the criteria of independence under clause 5.19.1.(b) of the Code.

2. The Directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a Director in more than seven listed companies, including Atlas
Honda Limited.

3.  All the resident Directors of the Company are registered as taxpayers and none of them has defaulted in payment of any loan
to a banking company, DFI or NBFI. or, being a member of stock exchange has been declared as a defaulter by that stock
exchange.

4. Two casual vacancies, occurring subsequent to the year end in April 2017, were duly filled within the stipulated time by the
Directors.

5. The Company has prepared a sCode of Conducts and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken to disseminate it
throughout the Company along with its supporting policies and procedures.

6. The Board has developed vision and mission statements, overall corporate strategy and significant policies of the Company. A
complete record of particulars of significant policies along with the date on which they were approved or amended has been
maintained.

7. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on material transactions, including appointment and
determination of remuneration and terms and conditions of employment of the CEO and other executive Directors, have been
taken by the Board.

8. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and the Board met at least once in every quarter. Written notices
of the Board meetings, along with agenda and working papers, were circulated at least seven days before the meetings to all
the Directors. The minutes of the meetings were appropriately recorded and circulated.

9.  Out of the eight, six Directors have either obtained certificate of Directorsa Training Program or are exempted from the requirement

of Directorsa Training Program as per the clause 5.19.7 of the Code. While the remaining two Directors will undertake the Directorsa
Training Program within the stipulated time.
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10. The Board has approved the appointment of CFO, Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit, including their remuneration
and terms and conditions of employment.

11. The Directorsa report for the year ended March 31, 2017 has been prepared in compliance with the requirements of the Code
and fully describes the salient matters required to be disclosed.

12. The financial statements of the Company were duly endorsed by CFO and CEO before approval of the Board.

13. The Directors, CEO and executives do not hold any interest in the shares of the Company other than that disclosed in the pattern
of shareholding.

14. The Company has complied with all the corporate and financial reporting requirements of the Code.

15. The Board has already formed an Audit Committee. It comprises of three members of whom two are non-executive Directors
and one is an independent Director.

16. The meetings of the Audit Committee were held at least once every quarter prior to the approval of interim and final results of
the Company, as required by the Code. The terms of reference of the Committee have been prepared and advised to the
Committee for compliance.

17. The Board has already formed Human Resource and Remuneration Committee. It comprises of three members of whom two
are non-executive and one is executive Director.

18. The Board has set up an effective internal audit function manned by suitably qualified and experienced personnel who are
conversant with the policies and procedures of the Company.

19. The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating under the quality control
review program of the ICAP, that they or any of the partners of the firm, their spouses and minor children do not hold shares of
the Company and that the firm and all its partners are in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines
on Code of Ethics as adopted by the ICAP.

20. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other services except in accordance
with the listing regulations and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.

21. The aclosed perioda, prior to the announcement of interim/final results, and business decisions, which may materially affect the
market price of Companyas securities, was determined and intimated to Directors, employees and stock exchanges.

22. Material/price sensitive information has been disseminated among all market participants at once through stock exchanges.

23. All related party transactions during the year were on armas length basis and these have been placed before the Audit Committee
and Board of Directors. These transactions are duly reviewed and approved by the Audit Committee and Board of Directors
along with pricing method.

24, The Company has complied with requirements relating to maintenance of register of persons having access to inside information
by designated senior management officer in a timely manner and maintained proper record including basis for inclusion or
exclusion of names of persons from the said list.

25. We confirm that all other material principles enshrined in the Code have also been complied with.

On behalf of the Board
&Q_s\'g\\kg'
Saquib H. Shirazi
Karachi: April 28, 2017 Chief Executive Officer

Atlas Honda Limited
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Karachi Chambers,

SHINEWING HAMEED CHAUDHRI & CO.  Hasrat Mohani Road, Karachi.

Tel: 021 32412754, 32411474
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS Fax: 021 32424835

PAKISTAN Email: khi@hccpk.com

Principal Office:

HM House,

7-Bank Square,

Tel: 042 37235084-87
Fax: 042 37235083
Email: lhr@hccpk.com
www.hccpk.com

Review Report to the Members on Statement of Compliance
with the Code of Corporate Governance

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the best practices contained in the Code of Corporate Governance
(the Code) prepared by the Board of Directors of Atlas Honda Limited (the Company) for the year ended March 31, 2017 to comply
with the requirements of Listing Regulation no. 5.19 of the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited where the Company is listed.

The responsibility for compliance with the Code is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our responsibility is to review, to
the extent where such compliance can be objectively verified, whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Companyas
compliance with the provisions of the Code and report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of
the Code. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Companyas personnel and review of various documents prepared by the
Company to comply with the Code.

As a part of our audit of financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting and internal control systems
sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directorss
statement on internal control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the
Companyas corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Code requires the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of the Audit Committee, place

before the Board of Directors for their review and approval of its related party transactions distinguishing between transactions carried

out on terms equivalent to those that prevail in armas length transactions and transactions which are not executed at armas length
price and recording proper justification for using such alternate pricing mechanism. We are only required and have ensured compliance

of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of

the Audit Committee. We have not carried out any procedures to determine whether the related party transactions were undertaken

at armas length price or not.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of Compliance does not
appropriately reflect the Companyas compliance, in all material respects, with the best practices contained in the Code as applicable
to the Company for the year ended March 31, 2017.

Karachi: April 28, 2017 SHINEWING HAMEED CHAUDHRI & CO.
Engagement Partner: Raheel Ahmed CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Praxitv:
raxity,:

L]

. . GLOBAL ALLIANCE OF

a member firm of International INDEPENDENT FIRMS
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Karachi Chambers,

SHINEWING HAMEED CHAUDHRI & CO.  Hasrat Mohani Road, Karachi.

Tel: 021 32412754, 32411474
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS Fax: 021 32424835

PAKISTAN Email: khi@hccpk.com

Principal Office:

HM House,

7-Bank Square,

Tel: 042 37235084-87
Fax: 042 37235083
Email: lhr@hccpk.com
www.hccpk.com

Auditors' Report to the Members

We have audited the annexed balance sheet of Atlas Honda Limited as at March 31, 2017 and the related profit and loss account,
cash flow statement and statement of changes in equity together with the notes forming part thereof, for the year then ended and
we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary
for the purposes of our audit.

It is the responsibility of the Companyss management to establish and maintain a system of internal control, and prepare and present
the above said statements in conformity with the approved accounting standards and the requirements of the Companies Ordinance,
1984. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards as applicable in Pakistan. These standards require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the above said statements are free of any material misstatement.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the above said statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting policies and significant estimates made by management, as well as, evaluating the
overall presentation of the above said statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion and, after
due verification, we report that:

(a) inour opinion, proper books of accounts have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Ordinance, 1984;
(b) inour opinion:

(i)  the balance sheet and profit and loss account together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the
Companies Ordinance, 1984, and are in agreement with the books of account and are further in accordance with accounting
policies consistently applied;

(i)  the expenditure incurred during the year was for the purpose of the Companyas business; and

(iii) the business conducted, investments made and the expenditure incurred during the year were in accordance with the
objects of the Company;

(c) in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the balance sheet, profit and
loss account, cash flow statement and statement of changes in equity together with the notes forming part thereof conform with
approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan, and, give the information required by the Companies Ordinance,
1984, in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Companyas affairs as at March
31, 2017 and of the profit, its cash flows and changes in equity for the year then ended; and

(d) in our opinion, Zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980), was deducted by the
Company and deposited in Central Zakat Fund established under section 7 of that Ordinance.
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Karachi: April 28, 2017 SHINEWING HAMEED CHAUDHRI & CO.
Engagement Partner: Raheel Ahmed CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Praxitv
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Balance Sheet
As at March 31, 2017

Note 2017 2016
------ (Rupees in «000) -----

Assets

Non current assets

Property, plant and equipment 5 6,961,919 5,817,700
Intangible assets 6 37 5,379
Long term investments 7 292,342 245,508
Long term loans and advances 8 30,108 28,027
Long term deposits 17,339 14,937
7,301,745 6,111,551
Current assets
Stores, spares and loose tools 9 539,104 489,415
Stock-in-trade 10 2,123,831 1,863,482
Trade debts 1 623,331 608,420
Loans and advances 12 38,921 35,877
Trade deposits and prepayments 13 120,562 64,770
Accrued mark-up / interest 21,470 16,842
Other receivables 14 6,627 4,910
Taxation - net 732,706 542,121
Short term investments 15 7,080,669 5,876,554
Bank balances 16 7,053,784 4,755,020
18,341,005 14,257,411
25,642,750 20,368,962
Equity and Liabilities
Equity
Share capital 17 1,034,066 1,034,066
Reserves 18 12,223,467 9,968,057
13,257,533 11,002,123
Liabilities
Non current liabilities
Compensated absences 19 228,443 214,620
Deferred taxation 20 670,968 566,749
899,411 781,369
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 21 11,485,806 8,585,470
12,385,217 9,366,839
Contingencies and commitments 23
25,642,750 20,368,962

The annexed notes 1 to 43 form an integral part of these financial statements.

1 / Cad,
Gy ST
Yusuf H. Shirazi Saquib H. Shirazi
Chairman Chief Executive Officer
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Profit and Loss Account
For the Year Ended March 31, 2017

Note 2017 2016
------ (Rupees in «000) -----

Sales 24 64,534,021 55,022,415
Cost of sales 25 (57,754,987) (49,376,506)
Gross profit 6,779,034 5,645,909
Sales and marketing expenses 26 (1,630,773) (1,456,152)
Administrative expenses 27 (602,343) (499,915)
Other income 28 916,333 637,074
Other operating expenses 29 (404,740) (310,682)
Share of net profit of an Associate 61,084 43,475
Operating profit 5,118,595 4,059,709
Finance costs 30 (25,853) (15,280)
Profit before taxation 5,092,742 4,044,429
Income tax expense 31 (1,340,263) (1,042,630)
Profit for the year 3,752,479 3,001,799

Other comprehensive income:

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Remeasurements of staff retirement benefit obligation 3,324 3,889
n
Income tax relating to this remeasurement (997) (1,231) GC)
(S
Q
Other comprehensive income for the year - net of tax 2,327 2,658 g
Total comprehensive income for the year 3,754,806 3,004,457 -%
S
£
---------- (Rupees) -==------ [
Earnings per share - basic and diluted 32 36.29 29.03

The annexed notes 1 to 43 form an integral part of these financial statements.

/" / Cad,
W%ﬁ ’ &J\*_Eg\\gg'
Yusuf H. Shirazi Saquib H. Shirazi
Chairman Chief Executive Officer
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Cash Flow Statement

For the Year Ended March 31, 2017

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Cash generated from operations
Mark-up / interest paid

Income taxes paid

Contribution made to gratuity funds
Compensated absences paid
Mark-up / interest received

Workersa profit participation fund paid
Workerss welfare fund paid

Long term loans and advances - net
Long term deposits - net

Net cash generated from operating activities
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Payments for property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Payments for intangible assets

Payments for investments

Proceeds from sale of investments

Dividend received

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash Used in Financing Activities

Dividend paid

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

Note

33

16

The annexed notes 1 to 43 form an integral part of these financial statements.

W
Yusuf H. Shirazi
Chairman
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2017

2016

------ (Rupees in 000) -----

7,837,362 7,027,897
- (341)
(1,427,626) (1,498,297)
(25,355) (26,765)
(17,071) (12,566)
361,088 274,534
(215,727) (172,514)
(72,771) (65,990)
(2,081) (829)
(2,402) (1,951)
6,435,417 5,523,178
(2,036,972) (1,650,424)
57,669 113,720

- (459)
(8,171,694) (10,937,058)
7,282,296 9,470,806
225,143 55,872
(2,643,558) (2,947,543)
(1,493,095) (1,229,815)
2,298,764 1,345,820
4,755,020 3,409,200
7,053,784 4,755,020

&Q—E&\\Lg.
Saquib H. Shirazi
Chief Executive Officer



Statement of Changes in Equity
For the Year Ended March 31, 2017

Capital Reserves Revenue Reserves
Gain on Unappro-
Share Share Sale of General priated
Capital Premium Land Reserve Profit Total
(Rupees in «000)
Balance as at April 1,2015 1,034,066 39,953 165 5,332,000 2,832,361 9,238,545
Transfer to general reserve - - - 830,000 (830,000)
Total comprehensive income for
the year ended March 31, 2016
Profit for the year - - - - 3,001,799 3,001,799
Other comprehensive income - - - - 2,658 2,658

- - - 3,004,457 3,004,457
Transaction with owners
in their capacity as owners

Final dividend for the year
ended March 31, 2015 at

the rate of Rs.12.00 per share - - - - (1,240,879)  (1,240,879)
Balance as at March 31, 2016 1,034,066 39,953 165 6,162,000 3,765,939 11,002,123
Transfer to general reserve - - - 830,000 (830,000)

Total comprehensive income for
the year ended March 31, 2017

Profit for the year - - - - 3,752,479 3,752,479

Other comprehensive income - - - - 2,327 2,327

- - - 3,754,806 3,754,806
Transaction with owners
in their capacity as owners

Final dividend for the year
ended March 31, 2016 at
the rate of Rs.14.50 per share - - - - (1,499,396)  (1,499,396)

Balance as at March 31, 2017 1,034,066 39,953 165 6,992,000 5,191,349 13,257,533

The annexed notes 1 to 43 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Yusuf H. Shirazi Saquib H. Shirazi

Chairman Chief Executive Officer
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended March 31, 2017

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

LEGAL STATUS AND OPERATIONS

Atlas Honda Limited (the Company) was incorporated as a public limited company on October 16, 1962 under the Companies
Act, 1913 (now Companies Ordinance, 1984) and its shares are quoted on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. The registered
office is located at 1 - McLeod Road, Lahore. The Company is principally engaged in progressive manufacturing and marketing
of motorcycles and spare parts. The manufacturing and assembling facilities of the Company are located at Karachi and
Sheikhupura, with branches, customer care centres, warranty & training centres and other offices located in Karachi, Hyderabad,
Multan, Lahore, Faisalabad, Rahim Yar Khan and Rawalpindi.

During the year, the Honourable High Court of Sindh has sanctioned the merger of Shirazi Capital (Private) Limited and Shirazi
(Private) Limited with and into Shirazi Investments (Private) Limited. As a result, the Company became subsidiary company
of Shirazi Investments (Private) Limited, which holds 52.43% of issued, subscribed and paid-up capital of the Company as
at March 31, 2017.

BASIS OF PREPARATION
Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the approved accounting standards as applicable in
Pakistan. Approved accounting standards comprise of such International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan as are notified under the Companies Ordinance, 1984, provisions of and directives
issued under the Companies Ordinance, 1984. In case requirements differ, the provisions or directives of the Companies
Ordinance, 1984 shall prevail.

Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for certain financial instruments,
which are carried at fair values and staff retirement benefit - gratuity which is carried at present value of defined benefit
obligation net of fair value of plan assets.

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees, which is the functional currency of the Company and figures
are rounded off to the nearest thousand of Rupees.

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and the reported amount of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses.

The estimates and judgements are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances and are continually evaluated. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal
the related actual results. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised if the revision affects only that period,
or in the period of the revision and future periods. Judgements made by management in application of the approved accounting
standards that have significant effect on the financial statements and estimates with a significant risk of material adjustments
in the next year are discussed in respective policy note. The areas involving significant estimates or judgements are:

(i)  Estimated useful life of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets [notes 4.1 and 4.2];

(i) Provision for slow moving inventories [notes 4.9 and 4.10];

(i)  Estimate of payables and receivables in respect of staff retirement benefit schemes [notes 4.15 and 21.7];

(iv) Estimate of provision for warranty [note 4.20]; and

(v)  Estimation of current and deferred tax [note 4.21].
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3. NEW AND AMENDED STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
31 Standards, amendments to approved accounting standards effective in current year

New and amended standards and interpretations mandatory for the first time for the financial year beginning April 1, 2016:
(a) IAS 16 and IAS 38  Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible assets

The amendments introduces severe restrictions on the use of revenue-based amortization for intangible
assets and explicitly state that revenue-base methods of depreciation cannot be used for property, plant
and equipment. The rebuttable presumption that use of revenue-based amortization methods for
intangible assets is inappropriate can be overcome only when revenue and the consumption of the
economic benefits of the intangible assets are shighly correlateds, or when the intangible asset is
expressed as a measure of revenue. The Companyas policy is already in line with these amendments.

(b) IAS 19 Employee Benefits

. This amendment as a part of Annual improvements 2014 clarifies that when determining the discount
rate for post-employment benefit obligations, it is the currency that the liabilities are denominated in that
is important, not the country where they arise. The Companyas policy is already in line with this amendment.

(c) IAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting

Amendments to IAS 34 aInterim Financial Reportings clarifies what is meant by the reference in the
standard to sinformation disclosed elsewhere in the interim financial reports; entities taking advantage
of the relief must provide a cross-reference from the interim financial statements to the location of that

information and make the information available to users on the same terms and at the same time as

the interim financial statements. The amendments only effects disclosures in the Companyas financial
statements.

(d) IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements

Amendments to IAS 1, «Presentation of financial statementss are made in the context of the IASBas
Disclosure Initiative, which explores how financial statement disclosures can be improved. The
amendments provide clarifications on a number of issues, including:

- Materiality « an entity should not aggregate or disaggregate information in a manner that obscures
useful information. Where items are material, sufficient information must be provided to explain the
impact on the financial position or performance.

- Notes = confirmation that the notes do not need to be presented in a particular order.

- Other comprehensive income (OCI) arising from investments accounted for under the equity method
» the share of OCI arising from equity-accounted investments is grouped based on whether the items
will or will not subsequently be reclassified to profit or loss.

The other new standards, amendments to approved accounting standards and interpretations that are mandatory for the
financial year beginning on April 1, 2016 are considered not to be relevant or to have any significant effect on the Companyas
financial reporting and operations.

3.2 Standards, amendments to approved accounting standards and interpretations that are not yet effective and have
not been early adopted by the Company
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The following new standards and amendments to approved accounting standards are not effective for the financial year
beginning on April 1, 2016 and have not been early adopted by the Company:

(a) IFRS 9 Financial Instruments Effective date: January 1, 2018

IASB has published the complete version of IFRS 9, sFinancial instrumentsa, which replaces the guidance
in IAS 39. This final version includes requirements on the classification and measurement of financial

assets and liabilities; it also includes an expected credit losses model that replaces the incurred loss

impairment model used today. This IFRS is under consideration of the relevant Committee of the Institute

of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan. The standard not likely to have material impact on the Companyas
financial statements.
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(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

()

41

IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers Effective date: January 1, 2018

The IASB has issued a new standard for the recognition of revenue. This will replace IAS 18 which
covers contracts for goods and services and IAS 11 which covers construction contracts. The new
standard is based on the principle that revenue is recognised when control of a good or service transfers
to a customer » S0 the notion of control replaces the existing notion of risks and rewards. The standard
permits a modified retrospective approach for the adoption. Under this approach entities will recognise
transitional adjustments in retained earnings on the date of initial application (e.g. April 1, 2018), i.e.
without restating the comparative period. They will only need to apply the new rules to contracts that
are not completed as of the date of initial application. This IFRS is under consideration of the relevant
Committee of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan. The Company has yet to assess the
full impact of this standard on its financial statements.

IFRS 16 Leases Effective date: January 1, 2019

IFRS 16 will affect primarily the accounting by lessees and will result in the recognition of almost all
leases on balance sheet. The standard removes the current distinction between operating and financing
leases and requires recognition of an asset (the right to use the leased item) and a financial liability to
pay rentals for virtually all lease contracts. An optional exemption exists for short-term and low-value
leases. The accounting by lessors will not significantly change. Some differences may arise as a result
of the new guidance on the definition of a lease. Under IFRS 16, a contract is, or contains, a lease if
the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration. This IFRS is under consideration of the relevant Committee of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Pakistan. The standard is not likely to have material impact on the Companyss financial
statements.

IAS 12 Income tax Effective date: January 1, 2017

This amendment clarifies deferred tax treatment for debt instrument and also addresses questions
regarding determination of future taxable profit for the recognition test of deferred tax. The amendments
are not likely to have material impact on the Companyas financial statements.

IAS 7 Statement of cash flows Effective date: January 1, 2017

The amendment requires disclosures that enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in
liabilities arising from financing activities, including both changes arising from cash flow and non-cash
changes. The amendments only effects disclosures in the Companyas financial statements.

IFRIC 22 Foreign currency transactions Effective date: January 1, 2018

The interpretation clarifies which date should be used for translation when a foreign currency transaction
involves an advance payment or receipt. The related item is translated using the exchange rate on the
date that the advance foreign currency was paid or received and the prepayment or deferred income
recognised. The amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the Companyas financial
statements.

There are number of other standards, amendments and interpretations to the approved accounting standards that are not
yet effective and are also not relevant to the Company and therefore, have not been presented here.

SIGINIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These polices
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Property, plant and equipment
Owned assets

The Company has adopted cost model for its property, plant and equipment. Property, plant and equipment except for freehold
land and capital work-in-progress are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. Freehold land
is stated at cost less impairment loss, if any. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
asset, including any borrowing cost (note 4.24). The cost of a self constructed asset includes cost of materials, labour and
other overheads that are directly attributable to bringing the asset to a working condition for its intended use, costs of dismantling
/ removing the asset and restoring the site on which it is located. Items of property, plant and equipment individually costing
Rs.25,000 or less are charged to the profit and loss account as and when purchased.
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4.2

4.3

4.4

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost accumulated upto the balance sheet date less accumulated impairment loss, if any.
Capital work-in-progress is recognised as an operating fixed asset when it is made available for its intended use.

Where major components of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for in
the books of account as separate items of property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs including major renewals and improvements are included in the carrying amount of the asset or are
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with
the asset will flow to the Company and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced
part is derecognised at the time of replacement. Normal repair and maintenance and day-to-day servicing are charged to the
profit and loss account as and when incurred.

Depreciation is charged to the profit and loss account using reducing balance method except for dies and jigs, office equipment,
computers & accessories and furniture & fixtures, without considering extra shifts. Depreciation on dies and jigs, office
equipment, computers & accessories and furniture & fixtures is charged to the profit and loss account using straight line
method. Depreciation on additions is charged from the month in which the asset is available for use while no depreciation is
charged for the month in which the asset is disposed-off.

The depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values of items of property, plant and equipment are reviewed periodically
and altered if circumstances or expectations have changed significantly. Any change or adjustment in depreciation method,
useful lives and residual values is accounted for as a change in accounting estimate under IAS 8, sAccounting policies, changes
in accounting estimates and errorss and is applied prospectively in the financial statements by adjusting the depreciation
charge for the period in which the amendment or change has been made and for future periods.

Disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised when significant risk and rewards, incidental to the ownership
of that asset, have been transferred to the buyer. Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the carrying
amount of that asset with the sales proceeds and are recognised within «Other income / other operating expensess in the profit
and loss account.

Leased assets

Lease that substantially transfers all the risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of an asset to the Company is classified
as finance lease. Upon initial recognition, the leased asset is measured at an amount equal to the lower of its fair value and
present value of minimum lease payments. Subsequent to the initial recognition, the asset is accounted for in accordance
with the accounting policy applicable for owned assets.

Intangible assets

These are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses, if any and represent cost of software licenses,
SAP implementation & support cost and license fee of certain components that are being manufactured by the Company
under technology transfer arrangements.

Costs associated with maintaining these assets are charged to the profit and loss account as and when incurred, however,
costs that are directly attributable to the identifiable asset and have probable economic benefits exceeding one year, are
recognised as intangible asset. Direct costs include purchase cost of the asset, salaries and other service benefits of staff
deployed towards development of the asset and other related overheads. Expenditure incurred in respect of design, construction
and testing of an intangible asset are also added to the carrying amount of that asset.

Expenditure which enhances or extends the performance of the asset beyond its original specifications is recognised as a
capital improvement and added to the original cost of the asset.

All intangible assets are estimated to have definite useful lives and are amortised from the month the software / license is
acquired, made available for use or extended support cost is incurred, using the straight line method over a period of 2 to 5
years.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Non-financial assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date to identify circumstances indicating occurrence of impairment
loss or reversal of previous impairment losses, if any. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the assetss
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an assetas fair value less cost to
sell and value in use. Reversal of impairment loss is restricted to the original cost of the asset.

Investments in equity instruments of an Associate

Investment in an Associate is accounted for using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, the investment
is initially recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is increased or decreased to recognise the Companyas share of profit
or loss of the Investee after the date of acquisition.
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4.5

4.5.1

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

4.5.2

The Companyss share of post acquisition profit or loss is recognised in the profit and loss account, and its share of post
acquisition movements in other comprehensive income is recognised in other comprehensive income with the corresponding
adjustment to the carrying amount of the investment. When the Companyas share of losses in an Associate equals or exceeds
its interest in the Associate, the Company does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the Associate.

The Company determines at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that the investment in the Associate
is impaired. If this is the case, the Company calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable
amount of the Associate and its carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent to share of profit / loss of an Associate
in the profit and loss account.

Financial assets
Classification

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following categories: at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables,
held to maturity and available-for-sale. The classification depends on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets held for trading. A financial asset is classified in this
category if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in short term. Derivatives are also categorised as held for trading
unless they are designated as hedges. Assets in this category are classified as current assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current assets, except for maturities greater than 12 months after the end of the reporting period,
in which case, these are classified as non-current assets.

Held to maturity financial assets

Held to maturity financial assets are non derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity
with a positive intention and ability to hold to maturity.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative that are either designated in this category or not classified in any of the
other categories. They are included in non-current assets unless the investment matures or management intends to dispose-
off it within 12 months of the end of the reporting date.

Recognition and measurement

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade-date » the date on which the Company commits
to purchase or sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial assets
not carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised
at fair value, and transaction costs are expensed in the profit and loss account. Financial assets are derecognised when the
rights to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or have been transferred and the Company has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and receivables and held to maturity investments are subsequently
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of the sfinancial assets at fair value through profit or lossa category are
presented in the profit and loss account within «Other income / other operating expensesa in the period in which they arise.
Dividend income from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is recognised in the profit and loss account as part
of «Other incomes when the Companyas right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-monetary securities classified as available-for-sale are recognised in «Other
comprehensive incomes.

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in
equity are included in the profit and loss account as «Gains / losses from investment securitiesa.
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Interest on available-for-sale securities and held to maturity investments is calculated using the effective interest method is
recognised in the profit and loss account as part of sOther incomes. Dividend income from available-for-sale equity instruments
is recognised in the profit and loss account as part of «Other incomes when the Companyas right to receive payments is
established.

The Company assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired. If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss -
measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial
asset previously recognised in profit or loss - is removed from equity and recognised in profit or loss account. Impairment
losses recognised in profit and loss account on equity instruments are not reversed through the profit and loss account.
Impairment testing of other receivables is described in note 4.11.

4.6 Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are recognised at the time when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value less directly attributable transactions costs, if any, and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using effective interest method.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expired. Where an
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms or the terms of an existing
liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of original liability and
recognition of a new liability and the difference in respective carrying amounts is recognised in the profit and loss account.

4.7  Off setting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the
normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the counter party.

4.8 Derivative financial instruments and hedging activities

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured
at their fair values. The method of recognising the resulting gain or loss depends on whether the derivative is designated as
a hedging instrument, if so, the nature of the item being hedged. The Company designates certain derivatives as either fair
value hedge or cash flow hedge.

(a) Fair value hedge

Fair value hedge represents a hedge of the fair value of a recognised asset or liability or a firm commitment. Changes in the
fair value of a derivative that is designated and qualify as fair value hedge is recorded in the profit and loss account, together
with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability that are attributable to the hedged risk. The carrying value
of the hedged item is adjusted accordingly.

(b) Cash flow hedge
Cash flow hedge represents a hedge of a highly probable forecast transaction. The effective portion of changes in the fair
value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges is recognised in other comprehensive income. The
gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the profit and loss account. Amounts accumulated
in equity are reclassified to the profit and loss account in the periods when the hedged item affects profit and loss account.

4.9 Stores, spares and loose tools
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Stores, spares and loose tools are stated at lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of inventory is based on weighted
average cost. ltems-in-transit are stated at cost accumulated upto the balance sheet date. The Company reviews the carrying
amounts of stores, spares and loose tools on an on-going basis and provision is made for obsolescence if there is any change
in usage pattern and physical form. Impairment is also made for slow moving items.

410 Stock-in-trade

Stock-in-trade are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of raw materials and components represent invoice
values plus other charges incurred thereon. Cost of inventory is based on weighted average cost. Cost in relation to work-
in-process and finished goods represent direct cost of raw materials, wages and appropriate manufacturing overheads. Goods
in transit are valued at cost accumulated upto the balance sheet date.
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The Company reviews the carrying amount of stock-in-trade on an on-going basis and as appropriate, inventory is written
down to its net realisable value or provision is made for obsolescence if there is any change in usage pattern and physical
form of related inventory.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less costs necessary to be incurred in
order to make the sale.

411 Trade debts and other receivables
Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at original invoice amount which is the fair value of consideration to be
received in future and subsequently measured at cost as reduced by appropriate provision for receivables considered to be
doubtful. A provision is established when there is objective evidence that the Company will not be able to collect all amounts
due according to the original terms of receivables. The amount of provision is charged to profit and loss. Trade and other
receivables considered irrecoverable are written-off.

Exchange gains and losses arising in respect of trade and other receivables in foreign currency are added to the carrying
amount of the receivables.

412 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the balance sheet at cost. For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash
equivalents represent balances with banks.

4.13 Non current assets held for sale
Non current assets are classified as assets held for sale when their carrying amount is to be recovered principally through a
sale transaction rather than continuing use and sale is considered highly probable. They are stated at the lower of carrying
amount and fair value less cost to sell.

4.14 Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity and recognised at their face value.

4.15 Retirement and other service benefit obligations

4.15.1 Defined contribution plans
A defined contribution plan is a post employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contribution into a separate
entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. Obligation for contribution to a defined contribution

plan is recognised as an employee service benefit expense in the profit and loss account when it is due.

The Company operates defined contribution plans for its permanent employees excluding ex-patriates, through either one
of the following ways:

= arecognised provident fund; or

= voluntary pension schemes managed by Atlas Asset Management Limited, a related party, under the Voluntary Pension
System Rules, 2005, viz, Atlas Pension Fund and Atlas Pension Islamic Fund.

All the newly appointed employees are offered voluntary pension scheme only. However, those employees who are provident
fund trust members, have the option to opt for either of two above-mentioned defined contribution plans.

Equal monthly contributions at the rate of 11% of the basic salary are made to the fund / scheme both by the Company and
the employees. The fund is a separate legal entity and its assets are being held separately under the control of its Trustees.

4.15.2 Defined benefit plans

Defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than the defined contribution plan. Defined benefit plans define
an amount of gratuity that an employee will receive on retirement, usually dependent on one or more factors such as age
and years of service. The liability recognised in the balance sheet is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the
end of the reporting period less the fair value of the plan assets.

The Company has established separate funded gratuity schemes for its management and non-management staff who completes

qualifying period of service. Contributions under the schemes are made on the basis of actuarial valuation using Projected
Unit Credit Method, related details of which are given in note 21.7 to the financial statements.
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The amount arising as a result of remeasurements are recognised in the balance sheet immediately, with a charge or credit
to other comprehensive income in the periods in which they occur. Past-service cost are recognised immediately in profit and
loss account.

415.3 Compensated absences

Employeess entitlement to annual leave is recognized when they accrue to the employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave as a result of services rendered by employees up to the balance sheet date.

4.16 Trade and other payables

Liabilities for trade and other payables are carried at their amortised cost, which approximate fair value of the consideration
to be paid in future for goods and services received, whether or not billed to the Company.

4.17 Obligation under finance lease

Total outstanding obligation under the lease arrangements less finance cost attributable to future periods is presented as
liability. Finance cost under the lease arrangements is distributed over the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic
rate of finance cost on the balance of principal liability outstanding at the end of each period.

4.18 Operating leases / ljarah

Operating leases / ljarah in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor / Mujsir
(lessor) are classified as operating leases / ljarah. Payments made during the year are charged to the profit and loss account
on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease / ljarah.

419 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events and it
is probable that outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate of the amount can be made. Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect current best
estimate.

4.20 Warranty

The Company recognises the estimated liability to repair or replace damaged parts of products still under warranty at the
balance sheet date on the basis of historical claim information. The Company offers 3 yearss warranty on all engine spare
parts and six months warranty on all other spare parts of its motorcycles. The ratio of warranty claims filed during the year
to previous yearss sales is taken into account for determining the estimated liability.

4.21 Taxation
The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the profit and loss account, except to
the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.
Current
The current tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

The charge for current tax also includes adjustments, where considered necessary, to provision for tax made in the previous
years arising from assessments framed during the year for such years.
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Deferred

Deferred tax is recognised using the balance sheet method in respect of temporary differences arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.

Deferred tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet
date and are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset is realised or the deferred tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised

only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can
be utilised.
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4.22

4.23

4.24

4.25

4.26

4.27

4.28

Foreign currency transactions and translation

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
transactions. The closing balance of non-monitory items is included at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of transaction
and monetary items are translated using the exchange rate prevailing on the balance sheet date. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in profit and loss account.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of
revenue can be measured reliably. Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable and is
reduced for allowances such as taxes, duties, commission, sales returns and discounts. Revenue from different sources is
recognised on the following basis:

- Revenue from sales of motorcycles and spare parts is recognised when goods are dispatched and invoiced to customers.
- Interest income on deposits with banks and other financial assets is recognised on accrual basis.

- Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred except where such costs are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset in which case such costs are capitalised as part
of the cost of that asset.

Research and development costs

Research and development costs are recognised in profit and loss account as and when incurred.

Earnings per share

The Company presents Earnings Per Share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss
attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during
the period.

Segment reporting

Segment information is presented on the same basis as that used for internal reporting purposes by the Chief Operating
Decision Maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments. On the
basis of its internal reporting structure, the Company considers itself to be a single reportable segment.

Dividend and appropriation to reserves

Dividend and appropriation to reserves are recognised in the financial statements in the period in which these are approved.
Note 2017 2016

------ (Rupees in «000) -----
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Operating fixed assets 5.1 6,898,586 5,305,997
Capital work-in-progress 5.4 63,333 511,703
6,961,919 5,817,700
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5.1 Operating fixed assets

Buidings  Buildings Computers Electric
on on Plant Dies and Fumiture and
Frechold Leasehold frechold  leasehold  and and Factory Office  accesso- and gas
[and [and [and land  machinery figs equipment  equipment ries fidues ~ fitings  Vehicles Total
(Rupees in 1000)
As at April 1, 2015
Cost 5112 34132 641543 257227 6192606 1352044 266,152 30,165 144,260 64167 403,504 23782 9,664,804
Accumulated depreciafon < (logar) (2825 (@975 (29516%) (9857S) (134473 (2%1) (13743 (1250 (1o4%81) (115615 (4912609)
Net book amount 5112 23606 389016 167471 3240968 366286 131,679 7824 20517 2P 8613 168,167 475219

Year ended March 31, 2016

(Opening net book amount 512 23605 380016 167471 3240968 366286 131679 T84 5T 9T 8613 198167 4752195
Addtons 219970 - 1627 7930 1548 25578 32 2956 48710 19,002 75912 1369078
Disposals
Cost . - (5250 (105 (181372 (217608 (B87)  (1.281) - (40) (12466 (56765  (482,108)
Accumulated depreciation . . 3623 B0 108259 199951 3574 1,281 . 46 11,491 A414 353559
(1.421) (7o) (MY (17657 (22%9) - - ) (75 (32351)  (128549)
Writien-off
Cost . - - (10 (1450 (2850) (279) - - - (58) - (5,647)
Accumulated depreciation . . . 755 1,101 2567 257 . . . 3 . 4715
(256) (349) (283) 21) - - - 23 - (932)
Depreciation charge : (B13) (@272 (1687 (347218 (7706) (1405 (115 (510) (10749 (21378)  (36470)  (666795)
Closing net book amount 25082 2309 ATt 151262 3540508 366533 140913 8431 U%2 0% 0542 166317 530507
As at March 31, 2016
Cost 25082 34132 700507 256780 6739094 132683 285580 32606 17385 68617 410072 292089 10546127
Accumulated depreciation < (1040) (292076)  (105527) (3189496) (960301)  (f44g6T) (24175 (138863  (4183) (204830 (126672 (5,240,130
Net book amount 25082 2309 ATt 151202 3549508 366533 140913 8431 ug2 0% 0542 166317 530507

Year ended March 31, 2017

(Opening net book amount 25082 2309 ATt 151262 3549508 366533 140913 8431 %2 0% 0542 166317 530507 @

Additons . - 62 - 1306298 208862 112642 8466 15501 3064 e 132507 2485342 é

Disposals (note 5.3) %

Cost . - (182)  (12%6) (484%0) (3207%)  (3200) (370) (476) (45 (30st) (81227 (459,365 (cD—ﬁ

Accumulated depreciation . - 12 1199 335 24A7 2,386 31 476 31 200 2828 363801 %
U] (57 (140m)  (26551) (614) (19) - (%) @51)  (83004)  (95474) ug_

Depreciation charge (note 5.2) . (513)  (698%) (15125 (422113) (173504) (19063 (385  (15902) (13546 (74D (M91)  (7972M9)

Closing net book amount 25082 257 96062 136080 4410868 375050 233678 13028 34561 44035 20290 23919 6898586

As at March 31, 2017

Cost 25082 34132 1323300 25553 7096022 1214698 395022 40702 18850 98833 4B4662 3439 12572104

Accumulated depreciation - (1553 (302688 (119453 (357754 (BO4E)  (161344) (2679  (154200)  (B4798) (24312  (M0440) (5673518

Net book amount 25082 257 96062 136080 4410868 375050 233678 13028 34561 44035 20290 23919 6898586

Annual rate of depreciation (%) 179 10 10 10 % 10 2 % 2 10 2
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5.2 Depreciation expense of Rs.737,813 thousand (2016: Rs.636,176 thousand) has been charged in sCost of saless and Rs.59,466
thousand (2016: Rs.49,619 thousand) in sAdministrative expensesa.

5.3 Details of operating fixed assets disposed-off during the year:

Accumulated  Net book Sale Method of

Depreciation Cost  gepreciation ~amount proceeds disposal Sold to
Items with individual net book (Rupees in :000)
amount exceeding Rs.50,000 each
Plant and machinery
11,422 (7,921) 3,501 300 Negotiation ~ M/s. Naveed Traders, Baaway Di Kuttiya,
Lahore Road, Sheikhupura.
9,594 (6,653) 2,941 250 Negotiation ~ M/s. Naveed Traders, Baaway Di Kuttiya,
Lahore Road, Sheikhupura.
4,851 (3,282) 1,569 94 Negotiation  M/s. BA Old Machinery, Aziz Park, Ganda Naala,
Misri Shah, Lahore.
4,717 (3,526) 1,191 1783 Negotiation ~ M/s. Roshan Traders, Baaway Di Kuttiya,
Near Dawood Hercules, Sheikhupura.
3,964 (2,682) 1,282 77 Negotiation ~ M/s. BA Old Machinery, Aziz Park, Ganda Naala
Misri Shah, Lahore.
3,270 (2,206) 1,064 80 Negotiation ~ M/s. Naveed Traders, Baaway Di Kuttiya,
Lahore Road, Sheikhupura.
2,552 (1,651) 901 50 Negotiation ~ M/s. BA Old Machinery, Aziz Park, Ganda Naala
Misri Shah, Lahore.
2,477 (2,037) 440 480 Negotiation  Atlas Die Casting (Pvt.) Ltd., a related party,
Federation House, Clifton, Karachi
691 (497) 194 25 Negotiation ~ M/s. Roshan Traders, Baaway Di Kuttiya, Near
Dawood Hercules, Sheikhupura.
600 (269) 331 12 Negotiation  M/s. BA Old Machinery, Aziz Park, Ganda Naala
Misri Shah, Lahore.
542 (330) 212 20 Negotiation ~ M/s. Roshan Traders, Baaway Di Kuttiya,
Near Dawood Hercules, Sheikhupura.
498 (287) 21 10 Negotiation ~ M/s. BA Old Machinery, Aziz Park, Ganda Naala
Misri Shah, Lahore.s
224 (110) 114 4l Negotiation ~ Dawood Hussain Contractor, Ghosia Masjid
Road, Aagrah Taj, Karachi

45,402 (31,451) 13,951 1,642

Dies and jigs
27,820 (14,490) 13,330 123 Negotiation ~ M/s. Roshan Traders, Baaway Di Kuttiya,
Near Dawood Hercules, Sheikhupura.
16,717 (10,100) 6,617 37 Negotiation ~ M/s. Naveed Traders, Baaway Di Kuttiya,
Lahore Road, Sheikhupura.
7,813 (3,907) 3,906 17 Negotiation ~ M/s. Naveed Traders, Baaway Di Kuttiya,
Lahore Road, Sheikhupura.
3,465 (1,877) 1,588 8 Negotiation ~ M/s. Naveed Traders, Baaway Di Kuttiya,
Lahore Road, Sheikhupura.
2,420 (1,311) 1,109 5 Negotiation ~ M/s. Naveed Traders, Baaway Di Kuttiya,
Lahore Road, Sheikhupura.

58,235 (31,685) 26,550 190
Factory equipment

1,100 (830) 270 28 Negotiation  Dawood Hussain Contractor, Ghosia Masjid
Road, Aagrah Taj, Karachi.
2,100 (1,556) 544 21 Negotiation ~ Dawood Hussain Contractor, Ghosia Masjid
Road, Aagrah Taj, Karachi.
3,200 (2,386) 814 49
Electric and gas fittings
1,600 (1,196) 404 83 Negotiation ~ Dawood Hussain Contractor, Ghosia Masjid
Road, Aagrah Taj, Karachi.
242 (185) 57 9 Negotiation ~ M/s. Roshan Traders, Baaway Di Kuttiya, Near
Dawood Hercules, Sheikhupura.
1,842 (1,381) 461 92
Furniture and fixtures 173 (81) 92 19 Negotiation ~ M/s. Roshan Traders, Baaway Di Kuttiya,

Near Dawood Hercules, Sheikhupura.

78 Annual Report 2017



Accumulated  Net book Sale Method of
depreciation  amount proceeds disposal

Vehicles (Rupees in :000) Employees of the Company

Depreciation Cost Sold to

2,414 (1,413) 1,001 1,001 | Company Policy  Mr. Saquib H. Shirazi (Key Management
Person)

1,014
875
778
753

555 555 | Company Policy =~ Mr. Muhammad Yawar Farooq
523 523 | Company Policy ~ Ms. Amna Tahir

303 303 | Company Policy  Mr. Muhammad Sarfraz Majid
587 587 | Company Policy  Mr. Najam Ul Hassan Shah
753 587 587 | Company Policy ~ Mr. Azhar Muneer

753 543 543 | Company Policy ~ Mr. Muhammad Faisal Naveed
703 - 703 703 | Company Policy ~ Ms. Marrium Ahmed

1,997 (754) 1,243 1,243 | Company Policy ~ Mr. Akmal Dar (Key Management Person)
1,601 (961) 640 640 | Company Policy ~ Mr. Farhan Saleem
1,601 (937) 664 664 | Company Policy ~ Mr. Saadullah Ejaz
1,601 (961) 640 640 | Company Policy ~ Mr. Naveed Ahmed
1,601 (998) 603 603 | Company Policy ~ Mr. Muhammad Ammar
1,052 (383) 669 669 | Company Policy  Mr. Hassan Murad
1,049 (433) 616 616 | Company Policy ~ Mr. Umair Mukhtar
1,034 (458) 576 576 | Company Policy ~ Mr. Khalid Kamal
1,019 (471) 548 548 | Company Policy  Mr. Ghazanfar Allah Buksh
1,019 (461) 558 558 | Company Policy ~ Mr. Zia Ahmed Khan
1,019 (471) 548 548 | Company Policy ~ Mr. Saaduddin Khan
1,019 (461) 558 558 | Company Policy ~ Mr. Mirza Saleem Baig
1,014 (449) 565 565 | Company Policy ~ Mr. Faheem Haider

(459)

(352)

(475)

(166)

(166)

(210)

688 (298) 390 390 | Company Policy  Mr. Anser Mehmood
683 (240) 443 443 | Company Policy ~ Mr. Fawad Ahmed Tanwri
683 (23) 660 660 | Company Policy ~ Mr. Muhammad Tayyab Hassan
683 (170) 513 513 | Company Policy ~ Mr. Muhammad Ayyaz
678 (139) 539 539 | Company Policy  Mr. Niaz Muhammad
678 (139) 539 539 | Company Policy  Mr. Asif Hussain
678 (119) 559 559 | Company Policy ~ Mr. Hasan Matloob
678 (169) 509 509 | Company Policy  Mr. Saleem Shaukat
663 (332) 331 331 | Company Policy  Mr. Syed Azfar Hussain
657 (354) 303 303 | Company Policy  Mr. Masood Shiraz
263 - 263 263 | Company Policy ~ Mr. Waseem Usmani
263 (4) 259 259 | Company Policy ~ Mr. Akhlag Ahmed
263 (9) 254 254 | Company Policy ~ Mr. Munawar Badshah
263 9) 254 254 | Company Policy ~ Mr. Moazzam Ali Gondal
245 (4) 24 240 | Company Policy ~ Mr. Shoaib Ahmed
245 (4) 241 240 | Company Policy  Mrs. Omaima Farooqi
245 (8) 237 235 | Company Policy ~ Mr. Jamil Ahmad
245 (8) 237 237 | Company Policy  Mr. Sajjad Ali §2]
245 2) 233 233 | Company Policy ~ Mr. Khurshid Ahmad Khan %
243 4) 239 239 | Company Policy  Mr. Fahad Mahmood &
243 8) 235 235 | Company Policy ~ Mr. Kanwar M. Abid L
118 7) 71 71 | Company Policy  Mr. Ali Shah g
118 9) 79 79 | Company Policy  Mr. Kashif Waheed —_
118 6) 72 72 | Company Policy ~ Mr. Muhammad Hassan Waseem -g
118 6) 72 72 | Company Policy ~ Mr. Muhammad Hasnain Sheikh s
118 9) 69 69 | Company Policy  Mr. Muhammad Kaleem Abbas c
100 3) 67 67 | Company Policy ~ Mr. Mubeen Anwar L
100 8) 62 62 | Company Policy ~ Mr. Sumair Ahmad
100 8) 62 62 | Company Policy  Mr. Tariq Javed Shaheen

98 7) 61 61 | Company Policy  Mr. Imran Talpur

98 7) 61 61 | Company Policy  Mr. Bilal Ahmed

98 0) 58 58 | Company Policy  Mr. Nawab Khan

98 6) 72 72 | Company Policy  Mr. Adeel Ahmed

98 6) 62 62 | Company Policy  Mr. Manjor Sharma

98 6) 62 62 | Company Policy  Mr. Zain Ul Abeden

98 9) 79 79 | Company Policy ~ Mr. Muhammad Jabbar

98 3) 75 75 | Company Policy ~ Mr. Muhammad Rizwan

Balance carried forward 35,875 21,793 21,789
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- Accumulated  Net book Sale Method of
Depreciation Cost  gepreciaton amount proceeds disposal Sold to
Vehicles (Rupees in :000) Employees of the Company
Balance brought forward 35,875 (14,082) 21,793 21,789
98 (28) 70 70 | Company Policy  Mr. Ghulam Murtaza
98 (36) 62 62 | Company Policy  Mr. Rafi Raza
98 (37) 61 61 | Company Policy  Mr. Faisal Yasin
98 (38) 60 60 | Company Policy  Mr. Shabee Ul Haq
98 (38) 60 60 | Company Policy  Mr. Muhammad Umair
98 (38) 60 60 | Company Policy  Mr. M. Kashif Jabbar
98 (38) 60 60 | Company Policy ~ Mr. Muhammad Munam
98 (39) 59 59 | Company Policy  Mr. Salman llyas Hamid
97 (42) 55 55 | Company Policy  Mr. Naeem Uddin Ahmed
97 (40) 57 57 | Company Policy  Mr. Muhammad Ather Naseer
96 (44) 52 52 | Company Policy  Mr. Ahsan Abbas
82 (31) 51 51 | Company Policy ~ Mr. Sajjad Ali
82 (21) 61 61 | Company Policy ~ Mr. Nazar Hussain
82 (20) 62 62 | Company Policy  Mr. Asif Ikram Ghauri
82 (28) 54 54 | Company Policy  Mr. Imran Shehzad
70 (2) 68 68 | Company Policy  Mr. Ubaid Rasool
Ex-Employees of the Company
2,112 (556) 1,556 1,556 | Company Policy  Mr. Khalid Aziz
1,997 (586) 1,411 1,411 | Company Policy  Mr. Zafar Igbal
1,997 (612) 1,385 1,385 | Company Policy  Mr. Sohail Qaiser
1,991 (451) 1,540 1,540 | Company Policy =~ Mr. Khawar Saeed
1,880 (1,110 770 770 | Company Policy ~ Mr. Javaid Afghani
1,652 (55) 1,597 1,597 | Company Policy ~ Mr. Ghulam Mujtaba Khan
1,646 (137) 1,509 1,509 | Company Policy  Mr. Muhammad Naeem
1,601 (877) 724 724 | Company Policy  Mr. Irfan Munir
1,601 (949) 652 652 | Company Policy  Mr. Muhammad Naeem
1,544 (918) 626 626 | Company Policy  Mr. Abdul Waheed Malik
1,174 (117) 1,057 1,057 | Company Policy ~ Mr. Mustafa Baluch
1,174 (117) 1,057 1,057 | Company Policy ~ Mr. Shaukat Ali
1,109 (177) 932 932 | Company Policy ~ Mr. Riaz Ahmed
1,019 (410) 609 609 | Company Policy  Mr. Muhammad Nauman Akram
880 (103) 777 777 | Company Policy ~ Mr. Faisal Mehmood
852 (14) 838 838 | Company Policy  Mr. Muhammad Ashraf Malik
758 (38) 720 720 | Company Policy ~ Mr. Muhammad Ali Shah
748 97) 651 651 | Company Policy ~ Mr. Muhammad Zaman
695 (232) 463 463 | Company Policy  Mr. Kashif Ishfaq
683 (120) 563 563 | Company Policy  Mr. Shaukat Ali
683 (160) 523 523 | Company Policy ~ Mr. Muhammad Jamil Amanat
658 (307) 351 351 | Company Policy ~ Mr. Abu Nasir Javed
656 (33) 623 623 | Company Policy  Mr. Muhammad Younus
297 (5) 292 285 | Company Policy ~ Mr. Muhammad Akhlaq
100 (36) 64 64 | Company Policy  Mr. Rana Zeb Sarfraz
98 (11) 87 87 | Company Policy ~ Mr. Mueed Iftikhar
98 (16) 82 82 | Company Policy  Mr. Najam Ul Hassan
98 (34) 64 64 | Company Policy ~ Mr. Muhammad Fiaz Butt
82 (21) 61 61 | Company Policy  Mr. Shahroze Umar
82 (29) 53 53 | Company Policy  Mr. Osama Anis
Others
2,122 (453) 1,669 1,669 | Company Policy  Atlas Autos (Pvt.) Ltd., a related party,
Federation House, Clifton, Karachi.
1,174 (59) 1,115 1,115 | Company Policy  Atlas Autos (Pvt.) Ltd., a related party,
Federation House, Clifton, Karachi.
1,174 (59) 1,115 1,115 | Company Policy  Atlas Autos (Pvt.) Ltd., a related party,
Federation House, Clifton, Karachi.
Balance carried forward 71,782 (28,501) 48,281 48,270
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Accumulated  Net book Sale Method of

Depreciation Cost  gepreciaton amount proceeds disposal Sold to
Vehicles (Rupees in 1000) Others
Balance brought forward 71,782 (23,501) 48,281 48,270
1,039 (319) 720 720 | Company Policy  Atlas Autos (Pvt.) Ltd., a related party,
Federation House, Clifton, Karachi.
99 (16) 83 83 | Company Policy  Atlas Autos (Pvt.) Ltd., a related party,
Federation House, Clifton, Karachi.
98 (29) 69 69 | Company Policy  Atlas Autos (Pvt.) Ltd., a related party,
Federation House, Clifton, Karachi.
98 (42) 56 56 | Company Policy  Atlas Autos (Pvt.) Ltd., a related party,
Federation House, Clifton, Karachi.
98 (29) 69 69 | Company Policy  Atlas Autos (Pvt.) Ltd., a related party,
Federation House, Clifton, Karachi.
82 (8) 74 74 | Company Policy  Atlas Autos (Pvt.) Ltd., a related party,
Federation House, Clifton, Karachi.
745 (62) 683 683 Negotiation Mr. Muhammad Saleem, Karachi
683 (80) 603 604 Negotiation Mr. Muhammad Aamir, Block-B,
Ghulshan Jamal, Shahra-e-Faisal,
Karachi
487 (416) 71 371 Negotiation Mr. Ahmed Jan, Darwaish Arcade,
Jamshed Quarter, Police Line, Karachi
1,011 (913) 98 677 Negotiation Ms. Khadeeja Ahmad, Wahdat Colony,
Lahore.
758 (170) 588 588 | Insurance Claim  Atlas Insurance Limited, a related party,
Federation House, Clifton, Karachi.
99 (10) 89 89 | Insurance Claim Atlas Insurance Limited, a related party,
Federation House, Clifton, Karachi.
98 (26) 72 72 | Insurance Claim  Atlas Insurance Limited, a related party,
Federation House, Clifton, Karachi.

77,177 (25,621) 51,556 52,425

186,029 (92,605) 93,424 54,417
Various assets having net book
value upto Rs. 50,000 each

273,336 (271,286) 2,050 3,252

Year Ended: March 31, 2017 459,365 (363,891) 95474 57,669

Year ended March 31, 2016 482,108 (353,559) 128,549 113,720
%)
c
()
Note 2017 2016 £
------ (Rupees in x000) - &
5.4 Capital work-in-progress )
Civil works 5.4.1 47,459 296,299 -%
Plant and machinery 5.4.1 1,602 189,766 S
Dies and jigs - 993 L%
Factory equipment 3,465 2,280
Office equipment 960 -
Furniture and fixtures 4,169 10,236
Electric and gas fittings 317 -
Vehicles 5.4.2 5,361 12,129
63,333 511,703

5.4.1 Includes advances of Rs.Nil (2016: Rs.20,163 thousands) made to Pakistan Cables Limited - a related party.

5.4.2 Includes advance of Rs.4,636 thousand (2016: Rs. Nil) made to Honda Atlas Cars (Pakistan) Limited - a related party.
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6. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Software implegl:rltation Licence Total
licences and fee
support cost
As at April 1, 2015 (Rupees in :000)
Cost 57,522 38,041 5,216 100,779
Accumulated amortisation (45,705) (38,041) (4,259) (88,005)
Net book amount 11,817 - 957 12,774
Year ended March 31, 2016
Opening net book amount 11,817 - 957 12,774
Additions 459 - - 459
Amortisation charge (6,898) - (956) (7,854)
Closing net book amount 5,378 - 1 5,379
As at March 31, 2016
Cost 57,981 38,041 5,216 101,238
Accumulated amortisation (52,603) (38,041) (5,215) (95,859)
Net book amount 5,378 - 1 5,379
Year ended March 31, 2017
Opening net book amount 5,378 - 1 5,379
Amortisation charge (note 25.1) (5,341) - (1) (5,342)
Closing net book amount 37 - - 37
As at March 31, 2017
Cost 57,981 38,041 5,216 101,238
Accumulated amortisation (57,944) (88,041) (5,216) (101,201)
Net book amount 37 - - 37
Annual rate of amortisation (%) 50 20 20
Note 2017 2016

------ (Rupees in «000) -----
7. LONG TERM INVESTMENTS

Unquoted

Associate - equity accounted investment 71 292,342 245,508

Others - available for sale 7.2 - -
292,342 245,508

71 Equity accounted investment -
Atlas Hitec (Private) Limited

Balance as at April 1 245,508 216,283

Share of profit for the year - net of tax 61,084 43,475

Dividend received during the year (14,250) (14,250)

Balance as at March 31 292,342 245,508
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7.1.1 Investment in Atlas Hitec (Private) Limited (AHPL) represents 19,000,000 fully paid ordinary shares of Rs.10 each representing
29.23% (2016: 29.23%) of its issued, subscribed and paid-up capital as at March 31, 2017. AHPL was incorporated in Pakistan
as a private limited company on September 13, 2012 and its principal activity is to manufacture and sale any kind of automobile
parts and allied products.

7.1.2 The summary of financial information / reconciliation of AHPL as of March 31, 2017 is as follows:
2017 2016

------ (Rupees in 000) -----
Summarised Balance Sheet

Non current assets 551,500 325,300
Current assets 574,300 571,300

1,125,800 896,600
Current liabilities 140,978 72,000
Net assets 984,822 824,600

Reconciliation to carrying amount

Opening net assets 824,600 724,600
Profit for the year 185,500 128,600
Other adjustments 23,472 20,150
Dividend paid during the year (48,750) (48,750)
Closing net assets 984,822 824,600
Companyas share 29.23% 29.23%
Companyas share 287,871 241,037
Goodwill 4,471 4,471

Carrying amount of investment 292,342 245,508

Summarised Profit and Loss Account

Revenue 1,857,200 1,543,200
Profit before tax 186,000 153,900
Profit after tax 185,500 128,600 ”
l=
[0)
7.1.3 The financial information of AHPL is based on unaudited financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017. %
©
2017 2016 %)
------ (Rupees in «000) ----- T
7.2 Others - available for sale 8
o]
Arabian Sea Country Club Limited ,_%
200,000 ordinary shares of Rs.10 each - cost 2,000 2,000
Less: Impairment in the value of investment 2,000 2,000

Automotive Testing & Training Centre (Private) Limited
50,000 ordinary shares of Rs.10 each - cost 500 500
Less: Impairment in the value of investment 500 500
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8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

Note 2017 2016
------ (Rupees in «000) -----

LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

Considered good
Loans and advances to:

Executives 8.2 10,734 10,210
Other employees 53,655 50,437
8.1 64,389 60,647
Less: amounts due within twelve months and

shown under current assets: 12
Executives 9,120 9,001
Other employees 25,161 23,619
34,281 32,620
30,108 28,027

These represent interest free loans and advances provided to executives and other employees as per the terms of employment.
Loans aggregating Rs.45,928 thousand (2016: Rs.43,559 thousand) are provided for purchase of motorcycles and are
repayable in forty eight equal monthly instalments for management staff and forty equal monthly instalments for non-management
staff. These loans are secured against respective motorcycles and employeess vested retirement benefits. Advances are
unsecured and are repayable in eighteen equal monthly instalments.

Reconciliation of the carrying amount of loans and advances to executives:

Note 2017 2016
------ (Rupees in «000) -----

Balance as at April 1 10,210 9,062
Disbursements 15,730 15,287

25,940 24,349
Repayments (15,206) (14,139)
Balance as at March 31 10,734 10,210

The maximum amount of loans and advances to the executives outstanding at the end of any month during the year ended
March 31, 2017 was Rs.11,375 thousand (2016: Rs.11,841 thousand).

The carrying values of these loans and advances are neither past due nor impaired. The credit quality of these financial assets
can be assessed with reference to negligible defaults in recent history.

Note 2017 2016
------ (Rupees in «000) -----

STORES, SPARES AND LOOSE TOOLS

Consumable stores 97,717 83,079
Maintenance spares 319,653 273,315
Loose tools 213,024 200,090
630,394 556,484
Provision for slow moving items 10.2 (91,290) (67,069)
539,104 489,415
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Note 2017 2016
------ (Rupees in 000) -----
10. STOCK-IN-TRADE

Raw materials and components

- in hand 1,216,386 1,279,775

- held with vendors 10.1 63,105 85,684

1,279,491 1,365,459

Work-in-process 4,636 2,858
Finished goods

- motorcycles 68,853 78,510

- spare parts 468,900 312,862

537,753 391,372

Items in transit 360,063 156,126

2,181,943 1,915,815

Provision for slow moving items 10.2 (58,112) (52,333)

2,123,831 1,863,482

10.1  Includes raw materials amounting Rs.6,953 thousand (2016: Rs.6,866 thousand) held with Atlas Autos (Private) Limited (a
related party) for further processing into parts to be supplied to the Company.

Stores, spares & loose tools Stock-in-trade
2017 2016 2017 2016

10.2 Movement of provision for
slow moving inventories

Balance as at April 1 67,069 69,065 52,333 37,233
Provision made during the year 24,221 - 5,779 15,100
Reversal during the year = (1,996) = -

Balance as at March 31 91,290 67,069 58,112 52,333

10.3  Stock-in-trade and trade debts upto a maximum amount of Rs.4,058,000 thousand (2016: Rs.4,058,000 thousand) are under
hypothecation of commercial banks as security for short term finance facilities (note 22).

Note 2017 2016 Q9

------ (Rupees in :000) ----- 5

11. TRADE DEBTS %
Considered good %

Export - secured 1.1 15,717 1,555 IS

Local - unsecured 607,614 606,865 8

©

623,331 608,420 S

11.1  These trade debts are secured against letters of credit issued by customers in favour of the Company.

11.2 At March 31, 2017, trade debts aggregating to Rs.28,172 thousand (2016: Rs.58,698 thousand) were past due but not impaired.
These relate to various customers for which there is no recent history of default. The ageing analysis of these trade debts is

as follows:
2017 2016
------ (Rupees in «000) -----
Past due within 30 days 25,288 55,152
Past due beyond 30 days 2,884 3,546

28,172 58,698
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Note 2017 2016
------ (Rupees in «000) -----
12.  LOANS AND ADVANCES

Considered good

Current portion of long term loans and advances

to executives and other employees 8 34,281 32,620
Loans to employees other than executives 121 456 579
Advances to suppliers, contractors and others 4,184 2,678

38,921 35,877

12.1  These represent interest free welfare and festival loans provided to employees in accordance with Companyas policy and have
maturities upto ten months.

12.2 The carrying values of loans and advances are neither past due nor impaired. The credit quality of these financial assets can
be assessed with reference to negligible defaults in recent history.
2017 2016
------ (Rupees in «000) -----
13. TRADE DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

Trade deposits - unsecured and considered good 36,879 5,400
Prepayments 83,683 59,370
120,562 64,770

13.1  Includes prepayments of Rs. 34,399 thousand (2016: Rs. 29,597 thousand) to Atlas Insurance Limited - a related party.

2017 2016
------ (Rupees in «000) -----
14. OTHER RECEIVABLES

Unsecured and considered good

Duty drawback receivable 5,023 3,631
Others 1,604 1,279
6,627 4,910

15.  SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS - At fair value
through profit or loss

2017 2016
----- Number of units ----- Related parties
5,329,964 4,947,290 Atlas Income Fund 2,835,381 2,672,823
3,525,913 3,093,041 Atlas Money Market Fund 1,848,531 1,628,981
503,770 486,522 Atlas Gold Fund 51,500 50,593
721,453 721,453 Atlas Islamic Stock Fund 444,184 311,545
3,521,882 3,640,771 Atlas Sovereign Liquid Fund 365,536 380,206
220,949 218,972 Atlas Stock Market Fund 148,084 99,994
1,367,167 - Atlas Islamic Income Fund 715,958 -
6,409,174 5,144,142
Others
2,477,740 2,375,296 Lakson Money Market Fund 260,617 247,882
3,265,559 3,064,733 Lakson Income Fund 344,762 330,276
- 9,831,295 NIT Government Bond Fund - 103,904
= 5,000,000 NIT Islamic Equity Fund = 50,350
737,906 - National Investment (Unit) Trust 66,116 -
671,495 732,412
7,080,669 5,876,554
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Note 2017 2016
------ (Rupees in 000) -----
16. BANK BALANCES

Cash at banks in:

- current accounts 399,430 158,702
- savings deposit accounts 16.1 1,004,354 896,318
- term deposit receipts 16.2 5,650,000 3,700,000

7,053,784 4,755,020

16.1  Savings deposit accounts carry mark-up ranging upto 5.85% (2016: 6.50%) per annum.

16.2 Term deposit receipts (TDR) have maturity days ranging from 30 to 90 days (2016: 30 days) from respective date of acquisition.
These TDRs carry mark-up at the rates ranging from 5.95% to 6.10% (2016: 6.40% to 6.65%) per annum.

17. SHARE CAPITAL

17.1  Authorized capital

2017 2016 2017 2016
----- Number of shares ----- ------ (Rupees in 4000) -----
150,000,000 150,000,000 Ordinary shares of Rs.10 each 1,500,000 1,500,000

17.2 lIssued, subscribed and paid-up capital

2017 2016
----- Number of shares -----
6,352,748 6,352,748 Ordinary shares of Rs.10 each fully paid in cash 63,528 63,528
96,794,565 96,794,565 Ordinary shares of Rs.10 each issued as fully
paid bonus shares 967,945 967,945
259,300 259,300 Ordinary shares of Rs.10 each issued as fully
paid for consideration other than cash 2,593 2,593
103,406,613 103,406,613 1,034,066 1,034,066
2017 2016

------ Number of shares -----
17.3 Ordinary shares of the Company held by the related parties as at March 31

Shirazi Investments (Private) Limited 54,220,693 25,265,858
Honda Motor Company Limited, Japan 36,192,315 36,192,315
Atlas Insurance Limited 2,931,728 2,931,728

Shirazi Capital (Private) Limited - 25,359,715 %

Shirazi (Private) Limited - 3,595,120 g

93,344,736 93,344,736 o

®©

n

2017 2016 T

------ (Rupees in 1000) ----- O

18. RESERVES S

c

Capital reserves [
Share premium 39,953 39,953
Gain on sale of land 165 165
40,118 40,118

Revenue reserves
General reserve:

- at April 1 6,162,000 5,332,000
- transferred from unappropriated profit 830,000 830,000
- at March 31 6,992,000 6,162,000
Unappropriated profit 5,191,349 3,765,939
12,183,349 9,927,939
12,223,467 9,968,057
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Note 2017 2016
------ (Rupees in «000) -----
19. COMPENSATED ABSENCES

Balance as at April 1 214,620 195,145
Provision for the year 30,894 32,041
245,514 227,186
Encashed during the year (17,071) (12,566)
Balance as at March 31 228,443 214,620

20. DEFERRED TAXATION - Net

The liability for deferred taxation comprises temporary
differences relating to:

Accelerated tax depreciation 792,679 662,717
Unrealized gain on investments 18,924 28,902
Provision for slow moving inventories (44,279) (35,433)
Compensated absences (67,705) (63,690)
Warranty obligations (17,256) (13,399)
Staff retirement benefit - gratuity (11,395) (12,348)
670,968 566,749
20.1 Movement in deferred taxation
Balance as at April 1 566,749 578,249
Charge for the year to:
Profit and loss account 103,222 (12,731)
Other comprehensive income 997 1,231
104,219 (11,500)
Balance as at March 31 670,968 566,749

21. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Creditors 211 2,717,244 2,411,945
Accrued liabilities 21.2 2,294,184 1,643,251
Royalty payable 21.3 807,107 665,055
Warranty obligations 58,224 40,269
Advances from customers 21.4 4,759,060 3,214,454
Retention money 25,040 3,379
Sales tax payable - net 206,073 117,232
Workersa profit participation fund 215 270,713 215,727
Workerss welfare fund 21.6 102,687 81,652
Payable to staff retirement benefit funds - gratuity 21.7 38,447 43,694
Provision for Sindh government infrastructure fee 128,999 78,285
Unclaimed dividend 55,004 48,703
Others 21.8 23,024 21,824

11,485,806 8,585,470

21.1  Includes Rs.24,380 thousand (2016: Rs.44,136 thousand) and Rs.Nil (2016: Rs.56 thousand) due to Atlas Hitec (Private)
Limited and Pakistan Cables Limited [related parties] respectively.

21.2 Includes Rs.2,121 thousand (2016: Rs.940 thousand) due to Honda Motor Company Limited, Japan - a related party.
21.3  Includes Rs.800,745 thousand (2016: Rs.660,195 thousand) due to Honda Motor Company Limited, Japan - a related party.

21.4 These represent advances from customers against sale of motorcycles & parts and carry no mark-up. These advances include
Rs. Nil (2016: Rs.4,694 thousand) due to Honda Atlas Cars (Pakistan) Limited - a related party.
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Note 2017 2016
------ (Rupees in 000) -----
21.5 Workersa profit participation fund (the Fund)

Balance as at April 1 215,727 172,514
Allocation for the year 29 270,229 214,874
Interest on funds utilised in the Companyas business 30 484 853
486,440 388,241
Paid to trustees of the Fund (215,727) (172,514)
Balance as at March 31 270,713 215,727

21.6  Workerss welfare fund

Balance as at April 1 81,652 69,995
Charge for the year 102,687 81,652
Adjustment for prior year (8,881) (4,005)
29 93,806 77,647

175,458 147,642

Payment made during the year (72,771) (65,990)
Balance as at March 31 102,687 81,652

21.7 Staff retirement benefit - gratuity

21.71 The Company has established two separate funded gratuity schemes for its management and non-management staff, who
completes qualifying period of service.

21.7.2 These benefit plans are trustee-administered funds and are governed by local regulations which mainly includes Trust Act,
1882, Companies Ordinance, 1984, Income Tax Rules, 2002 and Rules under the Trust deed of the Plans. Responsibility for
governance of the Plans, including investment decisions and contributions schedules lies with the board of trustees. The
Company appoints the trustees and all trustees are employees of the Company.

21.7.3 The latest actuarial valuations of the Funds as at March 31, 2017 were carried out using the sProjected Unit Credit Methoda.
Details of the Funds as per the actuarial valuations are as follows:

Management Non-management Total
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
(Rupees in :000)

21.7.4 Balance sheet reconciliation

Present value of defined benefit obligation

at March 31 - note 21.7.5 328,371 309,560 38,370 35,699 366,741 345,259
Fair value of plan assets at March 31 - note 21.7.6  (262,154) (237,680) (86,134) (79,199) (348,288) (316,879)
Payable to related parties in respect of transferees 19,994 15,314 - - 19,994 15,314 -
86,211 87,194 (47,764) (43,500) 38,447 43,694 S
21.7.5 Movement in the present value of &
defined benefit obligation %
Balance as at April 1 309,560 289,018 35,699 35,865 345,259 324,883 (2
Benefits paid (17,755) (10,320) (1,870) (2,809) (19,625) (13,129) )
Current service cost 17,838 17,061 1,188 1,210 19,026 18,271 8
Interest expense 23,287 26,581 2,692 3,228 25,979 29,809 8
Remeasurement on obligation 16,439 3,628 661 (1,795) 17,100 1,833 [
Payable to related parties in respect of transferees ~ (20,998) (16,408) - - (20,998) (16,408)
Balance as at March 31 328,371 309,560 38,370 35,699 366,741 345,259

21.7.6 Movement in the fair value of plan assets

Balance as at April 1 237,680 214,977 79,199 69,030 316,879 284,007
Contributions 25,355 26,765 : . 25,355 26,765
Benefits paid (17,755)  (10,320) (1,870) (2,809) (19,625) (13,129)
Interest income 15,633 18,287 5,940 6,163 21,573 24,450

Remeasurement 17,559 (1,093) 2,865 6,815 20,424 5,722
Payable to related parties in respect of transferees ~ (16,318) (10,936) - - (16,318) (10,936)

Balance as at March 31 262,154 237,680 86,134 79,199 348,288 316,879
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Management Non-management Total
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
(Rupees in «000)

21.7.7 Expense/income recognised in
profit and loss account

Current service costs 17,838 17,061 1,188 1,210 19,026 18,271
Net interest expense / (income) 7,654 8,294 (3,248) (2,935) 4,406 5,359
25,492 25,355 (2,060) (1,725) 23,432 23,630

21.7.8 Remeasurement recognised in
other comprehensive income

Loss / (gain) from change in

financial assumptions 15,392 1,819 1,798 218 17,190 2,037
Experience loss / (gain) 1,047 1,809 (1,137) (2,013) (90) (204)
(Gain) / loss on remeasurement of plan assets (17,559) 1,093 (2,865) (6,815) (20,424) (5,722)
Net remeasurements (1,120) 4,721 (2,204) (8,610) (3,324) (3,889)

21.7.9 Net recognised liability

Net liability / (asset) at beginning of the year 87,194 83,883 (43,500) (33,165) 43,694 50,718

Charge / (income) for the year 25,492 25,355 (2,060) (1,725) 23,432 23,630

Contributions made during the year (25,355) (26,765) - - (25,355) (26,765)
Remeasurement recognised in

other comprehensive income (1,120) 4,721 (2,204) (8,610) (3,324) (3,889)

Recognised liability / (asset) as at March 31 86,211 87,194 (47,764) (43,500) 38,447 43,694

21.7.10 Actual return on planned assets 33,192 17,194 7,421 10,562 40,613 27,756

21.711 Plan assets comprise of:

Fixed income instruments 121,470 108,679 44,209 43,329 165,679 152,008
Mutual fund securities 140,480 126,760 40,826 28,567 181,306 155,327
Others 204 2,241 1,099 7,303 1,303 9,544

262,154 237,680 86,134 79,199 348,288 316,879

21.712 The expected return on plan assets was determined by considering the expected returns available on the assets underlying
the current investment policy. Expected yields on fixed interest investments are based on gross redemption yields as at the
balance sheet date.

Management Non management
2017 2016 2017 2016
------------------- % per anNumM ==-=====ssssemmmen

21713 Significant actuarial assumptions and sensitivity:

Discount rate at March 31 7.75 7.75 7.75 7.75
Expected rate of increase in future salaries - first year 12.00 10.00 12.00 10.00

- long term 6.75 6.75 6.75 6.75
Expected rate of return on plan assets 7.75 7.75 7.75 7.75

Demographic assumptions

- Mortality rates (for death in service) SLIC SLIC SLIC SLIC
(2001-05)  (2001-05)  (2001-05)  (2001-05)

- Rates of employee turnover Moderate Moderate Moderate  Moderate
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The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in principal assumptions is:

Impact on defined benefit obligation

Change in Increase in Decrease in
assumptions assumptions assumptions
---------- (Rupees in «000) --==-===--
Discount rate 1.00% 341,813 395,288
Future salary increase 1.00% 393,457 342,976
Withdrawal rates : light 364,692
Withdrawal rates : heavy 366,271

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constants.
In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and change in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity
of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same method (present value of defined benefit
obligation calculated with the projected unit credit method at the end of reporting period) has been applied as when calculating
the defined benefit liability recognised within the balance sheet.

The method and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the previous period.

21.714 Expected charge and income to management and non-management gratuity plans for the year ending March 31, 2018 are
Rs.24,443 thousand and Rs.2,361 thousand respectively.

21.715 The weighted average duration of defined benefit obligation for management and non-management plans is 6.97 years and
5.42 years respectively. The expected maturity analysis of undiscounted retirement benefits is as follows:

Less Between Between Over 5 Total
than a year 1-2years 2-5years years ota
March 31, 2017 Rupees in 000
Management staff 39,519 45,446 92,895 223,861 401,721
Non-management staff 4,000 1,825 14,055 38,707 58,587
Total 35,519 43,621 106,950 262,568 460,308
21.716 Historical Information 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
Rupees in :000
Present value of defined benefit obligation 366,741 345,259 324,883 305,323 281,568
Fair value of plan assets 348,288 316,879 284,007 261,100 212,932
Deficit provided in financial statements 18,453 28,380 40,876 44,223 68,636

21.8  Other liabilities include vehicle deposits under Companyas vehicle policy aggregating Rs.12,122 thousand (2016: Rs.12,574
thousand).

22, SHORT TERM BORROWINGS - Secured

Short term finance facilities available from various commercial banks under mark-up arrangements aggregate to Rs.2,740,000
thousand (2016: Rs.2,740,000 thousand) and are secured against pari passu hypothecation charge over the Companyas
stock-in-trade and trade debts to extent of Rs.4,058,000 thousand (2016: Rs.4,058,000 thousand). The rates of mark-up of
these facilities during the year ranged from 6.14% to 7.12% (2016: 7.01% to 8.99%) per annum. These facilities are expiring
on various dates by December 31, 2017.
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The facilities for opening letters of credit as at March 31, 2017 aggregated to Rs.3,530,000 thousand (2016: Rs.3,530,000
thousand) of which the amount remained unutilised at year end was Rs.2,092,382 thousand (2016: Rs.2,320,035 thousand).

23. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

23.1 Contingencies

23.1.1 Various cases have been filed against the Company by some former employees for reinstatement of service and are pending
in different courts of Pakistan. The management is confident that outcome of these cases will be in favour of the Company
and hence no provision is made in these financial statements.

23.1.2 Guarantees aggregating to Rs.1,658,491 thousand (2016: Rs.386,196 thousand) have been issued by commercial banks to
government and semi government institutions for import of raw materials and supply of goods.
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23.2 Commitments

23.2.1 Commitments outstanding for letters of credit relating to capital expenditure, raw materials and components as at March 31,
2017 aggregated to Rs.1,437,618 thousand (2016: Rs.1,209,965 thousand).

23.2.2 Commitments outstanding for capital expenditure other than through letters of credit as at March 31, 2017 aggregated to
Rs.131,915 thousand (2016: Rs.239,842 thousand).

23.2.3 The Company has entered into ljarah arrangements for vehicles with various banks. Aggregate commitments for these ljarah
arrangements as at March 31, are as follows:

Note 2017 2016
------ (Rupees in 000) -----
Not later than one year 29,765 26,574
Later than one year and not later than five years 52,361 46,489
82,126 73,063
24. SALES - Net
Gross sales
- Local 74,496,874 63,459,888
- Export 437,212 405,150
74,934,086 63,865,038
Less:
- trade discount and commission 351,104 285,997
- sales tax 10,048,961 8,556,626
10,400,065 8,842,623
64,534,021 55,022,415
25. COST OF SALES
Opening stock of finished goods 391,372 311,219
Cost of goods manufactured 25.1 53,512,593 45,730,387
Purchases during the year 4,388,775 3,726,272
57,901,368 49,456,659
Closing stock of finished goods (537,753) (391,372)
57,754,987 49,376,506
25.1 Cost of goods manufactured
Opening stock of work-in-process 2,858 25,131
Raw materials and components consumed 25.2 45,018,128 38,581,898
Direct labour 25.3 1,222,728 981,971
Technical Directorss remuneration 1,848 1,908
Stalff salaries, wages and other benefits 25.3 1,135,047 994,034
Stores consumed 753,119 590,287
Fuel and power 568,110 545,655
Insurance 93,998 78,032
Rent, rates and taxes 103,245 83,696
ljarah rentals 30,599 32,078
Repair and maintenance 490,495 376,606
Royalty 2,960,283 2,503,107
Technical assistance fee 53,735 35,122
Travelling, conveyance and entertainment 86,788 53,937
Postage and telephone 7,697 6,785
Printing and stationery 17,736 13,826
Vehicle running expenses 22,451 22,199
Depreciation 52 737,813 636,176
Canteen 112,251 97,298
Newspapers, magazines and subscriptions 3,775 2,204
Amortisation 6 5,342 7,854
Provision for slow moving inventories 10.2 30,000 13,104
Marking fee 58,547 50,121
Other manufacturing expenses 636 216
53,517,229 45,733,245
Closing stock of work-in-process (4,636) (2,858)
53,512,593 45,730,387
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25.2

25.3

25.4

26.

26.1

27.

Raw materials and components consumed

Opening stock
Purchases during the year

Closing stock

Note

25.4

2017

2016

------ (Rupees in «000) -----

1,365,459 1,174,432
44,932,160 38,772,925
46,297,619 39,947,357
(1,279,491) (1,365,459)
45,018,128 38,581,898

Direct labour and staff salaries, wages & other benefits include Rs.70,150 thousand (2016: Rs.68,437 thousand) in respect

of staff retirement benefits.

Purchases include government rebates netted-off aggregating Rs.8,601 thousand (2016: Rs.6,409 thousand).

SALES AND MARKETING EXPENSES

Directorss remuneration

Staff salaries and other benefits
Travelling, conveyance and entertainment
Vehicle running expenses

Rent, rates and taxes

Advertisement and sales promotion
Repairs and maintenance

Gas and electricity

Freight outward

Printing and stationery

Postage and telephone

First free service charges

Insurance

Newspapers, magazines and subscriptions
Others

Note

26.1

2017

2016

------ (Rupees in «000) -----

37,591 35,311
311,395 296,995
88,099 81,360
14,996 15,436
40,414 34,948
499,910 406,082
8,000 5,939
11,054 9,020
446,729 434,202
4,181 2,919
16,438 13,134
137,745 106,859
12,900 12,324
1,204 1,259
117 364
1,630,773 1,456,152

Staff salaries and other benefits include Rs.20,300 thousand (2016: Rs.22,944 thousand) in respect of staff retirement benefits.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Non executive Directorsas fee

Staff salaries and other benefits
Travelling, conveyance and entertainment
Rent, rates and taxes

Insurance

Repairs and maintenance

Legal and professional charges

Gas and electricity

Newspapers, magazines, fees and subscriptions
Postage and telephone

Printing and stationery

Vehicle running expenses

Staff training

Depreciation

Donation

Others

Note

271

5.2
27.2

2017

2016

------ (Rupees in 000) -----

20,770 20,798
325,488 274,767
20,380 17,551
8,632 6,119
4,876 3,787
13,253 12,657
24,045 14,292
1,795 2,049
3,513 5,097
3,607 2,673
12,822 11,935
7,415 7,869
28,734 23,152
59,466 49,619
67,349 47,436
198 114
602,343 499,915
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27.1  Staff salaries and other benefits include Rs.18,585 thousand (2016: Rs.18,390 thousand) in respect of staff retirement benefits.

27.2  Donation of Rs.66,444 thousand (2016: Rs.47,436 thousand) charged in these financial statements is paid to Atlas Foundation,
2nd Floor, Federation House, Shara-e-Firdousi, Clifton, Karachi (the Foundation). Mr. Yusuf H. Shirazi, Chairman and
Mr. Jawaid Igbal Ahmed, the Directors of the Company and also the Directors of the Foundation.

Note 2017 2016
------ (Rupees in «000) -----
28. OTHER INCOME

Income from financial assets

Mark-up / interest on savings deposit accounts and term deposit receipts 28.1 365,716 280,519
Gain on sale of investments at fair value through profit or loss 24,063 10,243
Fair value gain on investments at fair value through profit or loss 35,838 35,610
Dividend income 9,474

Net foreign exchange gains 93 54

Income from investments in related parties

Gain on sale of investments at fair value through profit or loss 35,215 66,277
Fair value gain on investments at fair value through profit or loss 219,601 178,476
Dividend income 201,419 41,622

Income from assets other than financial assets

Commission income 1,517 1,822
Scrap sales 22,607 20,070
Others 790 2,381

916,333 637,074

28.1 Mark-up / interest at the rates ranged from 2.20% to 6.70% (2016: 4.13% to 8.25%) per annum has been earned during the
year on savings deposit accounts and term deposit receipts.

Note 2017 2016
------ (Rupees in 1000) -----
29. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Workersa profit participation fund 21.5 270,229 214,874
Workerss welfare fund 21.6 93,806 77,647
Auditorss remuneration 29.1 2,900 2,400
Loss on disposal and write-off of operating fixed assets 37,805 15,761

404,740 310,682

29.1 Auditorss remuneration

Fee for:
- audit of annual financial statements 1,500 1,000
- review of half yearly financial information 212 212
- review of Code of Corporate Governance 91 91
- audits of retirement funds and workersa profit participation fund 250 250
- certifications for payment of royalty, technical fee and dividend 550 550
- out of pocket expenses 297 297
2,900 2,400

30. FINANCE COSTS

Mark-up / interest on short term borrowings - 341
Interest on workersa profit participation fund 21.5 484 853
Bank and other financial charges 25,369 14,086
25,853 15,280
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2017 2016
------ (Rupees in 000) -----
31. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Current tax

Current tax on profits for the year 1,159,131 1,065,822
Adjustments for current tax of prior years 77,910 (10,461)
1,237,041 1,055,361
Deferred tax
Origination and reversal of temporary differences 155,790 40,688
Impact of change in tax rate (52,568) (53,419)
103,222 (12,731)
1,340,263 1,042,630
31.1  Numerical reconciliation of income tax expense to prima facie tax
Profit before income tax expense 5,092,742 4,044,429
Tax at the applicable rate of 31% (2016: 32%) 1,578,750 1,294,217
Tax effect of:
- amounts not deductible for tax purposes 299,211 281,966
- amounts deductible for tax purposes but not taken to profit and loss account (401,341) (278,964)
- income not subject to tax / income subject to final tax regime / tax credits (300,334) (219,266)
- Associatess result reported net of tax (17,155) (12,131)
Adjustments for current tax of prior years 77,910 (10,461)
Deferred tax 103,222 (12,731)
Income tax expense 1,340,263 1,042,630

31.2  Section 5A of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 imposes tax at the rate of ten percent on every public company other than a
scheduled bank or modaraba, that derives profits for tax a year but does not distribute cash dividend within six months of
the end of said tax year or distribute dividends to such an extent that itss reserves, after such distribution, are in excess of
100% of its paid-up capital. However, this tax on undistributed reserves is not applicable to a public company which distributes
profit equal to either 40% of its after tax profits or 50% of its issued, subscribed and paid-up capital, whichever is less, within
six months of the end of the tax year.

The Board of Directors in their meeting held on April 28, 2017 has distributed sufficient cash dividend for the year ended March
31, 2017 (refer note 42) which complies with the above stated requirements. Accordingly, no provision for tax on undistributed
reserves has been recognised in the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017.

Z
c
()
32.  EARNINGS PER SHARE =
2017 2016 ©
------ (Rupees in :000) ----- 1)
32.1 Basic earnings per share T
Net profit for the year 3,752,479 3,001,799 8
2
S

------ (Number of shares) -----

Weighted average ordinary shares in issue 103,406,613 103,406,613

------ (Rupees) -----
Earnings per share 36.29 29.03

32.2 Diluted earnings per share

No figures for diluted earnings per share have been presented as the Company has not issued any instruments carrying
options which would have an impact on earnings per share when exercised.
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33.

33.1

33.2

CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

Profit before taxation

Adjustments for:

Depreciation

Amortisation

Provision for compensated absences

Provision for gratuity

Provision for slow moving inventories

Mark-up / interest on savings deposit accounts and
term deposit receipts

Gain on sale of investments at fair value
through profit or loss

Fair value gain on investments at fair value
through profit or loss

Net foreign exchange gains

Dividend income

Workersa profit participation fund

Workerss welfare fund

Loss on disposal and write-off of operating fixed assets

Mark-up / interest on short term borrowings

Share of net profit of an Associate

Changes in working capital

Changes in working capital
(Increase) / decrease in current assets

- Stores, spares and loose tools

- Stock-in-trade

- Trade debts

- Loans and advances

- Trade deposits and prepayments
- Other receivables

Increase in current liabilities:
- Trade and other payables

Cash flows from operating activities
- Direct method

Receipts from customers

Mark-up / interest received

Payments to trade suppliers, service providers
and employees

Mark-up / interest paid

Income taxes paid

Contributions made to gratuity funds
Compensated absences paid

Workersa profit participation fund paid
Workersa welfare fund paid
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Note 2017

2016

------ (Rupees in 1000) -----

5,002,742 4,044,429
797,279 685,795
5,342 7,854
30,894 32,041
23,432 23,630
30,000 13,104
(365,716) (280,519)
(59,278) (76,520)
(255,439) (214,086)
(93) (54)
(210,893) (41,622)
270,713 215,727
93,806 77,647
37,805 15,761

- 341
(61,084) (43,475)
33.1 2,407,852 2,567,844
7,837,362 7,027,897
(73,910) (66,080)
(266,128) (218,053)
(14,911) 96,177
(3,044) 5,358
(55,792) (5,202)
(1,717) (1,236)
(415,502) (189,036)
2,823,354 2,756,880
2,407,852 2,567,844
66,063,716 57,103,834
361,088 274,534
(58,230,837)  (50,078,717)
- (341)
(1,427,626) (1,498,297)
(25,355) (26,765)
(17,071) (12,566)
(215,727) (172,514)
(72,771) (65,990)
6,435,417 5,523,178




34. REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

The aggregate amounts charged during year in respect of remuneration and fee, including certain benefits, to the Chief
Executive Officer, Directors and executives of the Company are given below:

-------------------- Directors -------------------
Chief Executive Officer Others Executives
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
(Rupees in «000)

Managerial remuneration and fee 17,739 16,443 22,618 22,706 274,787 266,427
Rent and utilities 8,484 7,864 - - 131,420 127,330
Bonus 9,462 8,452 - - 144,522 134,455
Retirement benefits 1,697 1,573 - - 25,134 25,466
Medical and other reimbursable expenses 209 979 - - 13,775 13,158

37,591 35,311 22,618 22,706 589,638 566,836

Number of persons 1 1 5 5 215 217

34.1 The Chief Executive Officer, three Directors and two ex-patriate executives are provided with free use of Company maintained
cars and telephones at residences. Two Directors and two ex-patriate executives are also provided with furnished accommodation.

35. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Related parties comprise of the Holding Company, Associated Companies, staff retirement funds, Directors and key management
personnel. The Company in the normal course of business carries out transactions with various related parties. Detail of transactions
with related parties, other than those which have been disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, are as follows:

2017 2016
------ (Rupees in «000) -----
The Holding Company

Sales of goods 160 -
Associated companies
Sales of:
- goods and services 857,855 615,651
- operating fixed assets 15,995 99,010

Purchases of:

- goods and services 16,640,812 11,569,759

- operating fixed assets 92,085 60,013
Sale of units in mutual funds 4,485,622 8,167,623
Purchase of units in mutual funds 5,344,610 9,640,800
Royalty 2,967,098 2,510,161 @€
Export commission 3,637 3,539 S
Technical assistance fee 9,443 14,172 S
Commission income 1,517 1,822 Qo
Rent 105,399 90,907 S
Insurance premium paid 264,724 239,991 n
Insurance claims received 3,239 17,952 ©
Reimbursement of expenses - net 2,962 2,500 8
Dividend paid 1,353,499 1,120,137 ©
Donation paid 66,444 47,436 L%
Dividend received 215,669 55,872

Other related parties

Contributions paid to:

- gratuity funds 25,355 26,765

- provident funds / pension schemes 54,709 54,100
Key management personnel

- salaries and other employment benefits 136,717 132,688

- sale of vehicles under company policy 2,244 1,389

The related party status of outstanding balances as at March 31, 2017 is included in «Capital work-in-progress - note 5.4a,
»Trade deposit and prepayments - note 13s and s Trade and other payables - note 21a respectively. These are settled in ordinary
course of business.
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36.

36.1

(a)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
Financial risk factors
The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

- market risk (including foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk and price risk);
- credit risk; and
- liquidity risk.

The Companyss Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Companyas risk
management framework. The Board is also responsible for developing and monitoring the Companyas risk management
policies.

The Companyas overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Companyss financial performance. Risk management is carried out by a treasury department
under policies approved by the Board of Directors. The treasury department identifies, evaluates and hedges financial risks.
The Board provides written principles for overall risk management, as well as written policies covering specific areas, such
as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, use of derivative and non-derivative financial instruments and investment
of excess liquidity.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices will affect
the Companyas income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to
manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.

Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument shall fluctuate because of
changes in foreign exchange rates.

The Company operates internationally and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various currency exposures,
primarily with respect to the Japanese Yen and the US Dollar. Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions
and recognised assets and liabilities. The Companyas exposure to foreign currency risk at the reporting date is as follows:

Japanese us Japanese us
Yen Dollar Yen Dollar
1

Trade debts - 150 - 15
Trade and other payables (860,004) (146) (711,165) (155)
(860,004) 4 (711,165) (140)

The following significant exchange rates have been applied:
Average rate Balance sheet date rate

2017 2016 2017 2016
-------------------- (Rupees) -======m==mn-memmnne--

Pakistani Rupee to Japanese Yen 0.96 0.86 0.93 0.93
Pakistani Rupee to U.S. Dollar 104.80 104.25 104.85 104.80

At March 31, 2017, if the Pakistani Rupee had strengthened / weakened by 5% against Japanese Yen and U.S. Dollar with
all other variables held constant, profit before tax for the year would have been higher / (lower) by the amount shown below
mainly as a result of net foreign exchange gains / (losses) on translation of foreign denominated financial assets and liabilities.
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2017 2016
------ (Rupees in «000) -----
Effect on profit for the year:

Pakistani Rupee to Japanese Yen 40,141 33,069
Pakistani Rupee to U.S. Dollar (21) 734
40,120 33,803

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk represents the risk that the fair values or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate because of
change in market interest rates.

The Company is exposed to interest rate risk on balances with banks in savings deposit accounts and term deposit receipts.
Deposits in bank savings accounts held at variable interest rate expose the Company to cash flow interest rate risk and term
deposit receipts issued by the banks at fixed interest rates give rise to fair value interest rate risk. Significant interest rate
risk exposures are primarily managed by a suitable mix of deposits. At March 31, 2017, the Companyas interest bearing
financial assets amounted to Rs.6,654,354 thousand (2016: Rs.4,596,318 thousand).

At March 31, 2017, if the interest rate on the Companyass deposits had been 1% higher / lower with other variables held
constant, profit before tax for the year would have been higher / (lower) by Rs.10,044 thousand (2016: Rs.8,963 thousand)
mainly as a result of higher / (lower) interest income.

Price risk

Price risk represents the risk that the fair values or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes
in market prices (other than those arsing from foreign exchange risk or interest rate risk), whether those changes are caused
by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors effecting all similar financial instruments traded
in the market.

The Company is exposed to price risk because of investments in mutual fund securities aggregating to Rs.7,080,669 thousand
(2016: Rs.5,876,554 thousand) as changes in Net Asset Value (NAV) of mutual funds affects the Company. The Company
is not exposed to commodity price risk. To manage its price risk arising from investments in mutual funds, the Company
diversifies its portfolios.

At March 31, 2017, if fair value (NAV) had been 5% higher / lower with all other variables held constant profit before tax for
the year would have higher / (lower) by Rs.354,033 thousand (2016: Rs.293,828 thousand).

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk represents the risk of financial loss being caused if counter party fails to perform as contracted or discharge an
obligation. The Companyas credit risk arises from deposits with banks & financial institutions, loans & advances, deposits,

trade debts, investments, accrued mark-up / interest and other receivables. %

[0)

The carrying amounts of financial assets represent the maximum credit exposure. The financial assets exposed to credit risk %

amounted to Rs.14,899,921 thousand (2016: Rs.11,339,678 thousand) as at March 31, 2017 and are as follows: =

%)

2017 2016 %

------ (Rupees in 000) ----- %

<

Long term loans and advances 30,108 28,027 =
Long term deposits 17,339 14,937
Trade debts 623,331 608,420
Loans and advances 34,737 33,199
Trade deposits 36,879 5,400
Accrued mark-up / interest 21,470 16,842
Other receivables 1,604 1,279
Short term investments 7,080,669 5,876,554
Bank balances 7,053,784 4,755,020
14,899,921 11,339,678
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The maximum exposure to credit risk for trade debts at the balance sheet date by geographic region is as follows:

2017 2016
------ (Rupees in «000) -----

Pakistan 607,614 606,865
Bangladesh 15,717 1,555
623,331 608,420

The maximum exposure to credit risk for trade debts by type of counter party as at balance sheet date is as follows:

2017 2016
------ (Rupees in 000) -----

Government departments 6,647 1,009
Defence institutions 523,139 557,629
Others (including exports) 93,545 49,782

623,331 608,420

Out of the total financial assets credit risk is concentrated in trade debts, investments in mutual funds securities and deposits
with banks as they constitute 99% (2016: 99%) of the total financial assets. Significant part of sales of the Company occurs
against advance payments, therefore, trade debts mainly arise from export sales and local sales that were made to Government
and Defence Institutions. The Company believes that it is not exposed to any specific credit risk in respect of those trade
debts.

The credit quality of loans and receivables can be assessed with reference to their historical performance with no or negligible
defaults in recent history and no losses incurred. The credit quality of Companyass bank balances and investments in mutual
funds securities can be assessed with reference to the external credit ratings as follows:

Rating
Banks Short term Long term Agency
Allied Bank Limited Al+ AA+ PACRA
Askari Bank Limited Al+ AA+ PACRA
Bank Al Habib Limited Al+ AA PACRA
Bank Alfalah Limited A-1+ AA+ JCR-VIS
Banklslami Pakistan Limited A1l A+ PACRA
Deutsche Bank AG P-2 A3 MOODYa\S
Faysal Bank Limited Al+ AA JCR-VIS
Habib Bank Limited A-1+ AAA JCR-VIS
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited Al+ AA PACRA
Khushhali Bank Limited A-1 A+ JCR-VIS
MCB Bank Limited Al+ AAA PACRA
Meezan Bank Limited A-1+ AA JCR-VIS
National Bank of Pakistan Al+ AAA PACRA
NIB Bank Limited Al+ AA- PACRA
Soneri Bank Limited Al+ AA- PACRA
Standard Chartered Bank (Pakistan) Limited Al+ AAA PACRA
The Bank of Tokyo - Mitsubishi UFJ, Limited P-1 Al MOODYS
United Bank Limited A-1+ AAA JCR-VIS
Mutual Funds Rating Agency
Atlas Income Fund AA-(f) PACRA
Atlas Islamic Income Fund AA-(f) PACRA
Atlas Money Market Fund AA(f) PACRA
Atlas Sovereign Liquid Fund AA(f) PACRA
Lakson Money Market Fund AA(f) PACRA
Lakson Income Fund A+(f) PACRA
NIT Government Bond Fund AA-(f) PACRA
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(c) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk reflects the Companyas inability in raising funds to meet commitments. The Company manages liquidity risk by
maintaining sufficient balances with banks. At March 31, 2017 there is no maturity mismatch between financial assets and
liabilities that exposes the Company to liquidity risk.

36.2 Capital management

The Companyss objectives when managing capital are to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern so that it can
continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital. The capital structure of the Company is equity based with no financing through long term or short
term borrowings.

Loans and At fair value
receivables through profit and loss
2017 2016 2017 2016

---------------------- Rupees in 4000 -=--======sn=mmmnmuznn
36.3 Financial instruments by category

Financial assets as per balance sheet

Long term loans and advances 30,108 28,027 - -
Long term deposits 17,339 14,937 - -
Trade debts 623,331 608,420 - -
Loans and advances 34,737 33,199 - -
Trade deposits 36,879 5,400 - -
Accrued mark-up / interest 21,470 16,842 - -
Other receivables 1,604 1,279 - -
Short term investments - - 7,080,669 5,876,554
Bank balances 7,053,784 4,755,020 - -
7,819,252 5,463,124 7,080,669 5,876,554

Financial liabilities
measured at amortised cost
2017 2016

--- Rupees in 1000 ---

Financial liabilities as per balance sheet

Trade and other payables 6,018,274 4,878,120

36.4 Fair value measurement of financial instruments

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. Underlying the definition of fair value is the presumption that the Company is
going concern and there is no intention or requirement to curtail materially the scale of its operation or to undertake a transaction
on adverse terms.

The carrying values of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements are a reasonable approximation
of their fair values.
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The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value, by valuation method. The different levels have been
defined as follows:

- Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities [Level 1].

- Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as
prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) [Level 2].

- Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) [Level 3].
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The following table presents the Companyas financial assets that are measured at fair value at March 31, 2017 and March
31, 2016.
March 31, 2017

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Assets - Recurring fair value measurement
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Short term investments 7,080,669 - - 7,080,669

March 31, 2016
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Assets - Recurring fair value measurement
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Short term investments 5,876,554 - - 5,876,554

There were no transfers amongst the levels during the current and preceding year. The Companyas policy is to recognise
transfer into and transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as at the end of the reporting periods.

Valuation techniques used to determine fair values

Level 1: The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on quoted market prices at the balance sheet
date. A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker,
industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market
transactions on an armas length basis. These instruments are included in Level 1.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined by using valuation
techniques. These valuation techniques maximize the use of observable market data where it is available and rely as little
as possible on entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument
is included in Level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in Level 3.
There were no other material Level 1, 2 or 3 assets or liabilities during the current and preceding year.
37. ENTITY-WIDE INFORMATION

37.1 The Company markets and sells motorcycles and spare parts. Breakdown of net revenues for both the products of the
Company is as follows:

2017 2016
------ (Rupees in «000) -----

Motorcycles 58,333,750 49,932,568
Spare parts 6,200,271 5,089,847
64,534,021 55,022,415

37.2 Export sales are made to Afghanistan and Bangladesh. Result of the Companyas revenue from external customers in Pakistan
is Rs.64,100,446 thousand (2016: Rs.54,620,804 thousand) and total revenue from external customers from other countries
is Rs.433,575 thousand (2016: Rs.401,610 thousand).

37.3  All the non-current assets of the Company are located in Pakistan.

37.4 The Companyas customer base is diverse with no single customer accounting for more than 10% of net revenue.
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38. PLANT CAPACITY AND ACTUAL PRODUCTION

The production capacity of the Companyass plant cannot be determined as this depends upon relative proportion of various
types of motorcycles and motorcycle components produced.

39. NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

The number of employees as at March 31, 2017 were 1,638 (2016: 1,569). Average number of employees during the year
were 1,651 (2016: 1,589).

40. PROVIDENT FUND RELATED DISCLOSURE
The Company operates defined contribution provident fund (the Fund) maintained for its permanent employees. Equal monthly

contributions at the rate of 11% of the basic salary are made to the Fund both by the Company and the employees. The
following information is based on un-audited financial statements of the Fund for the year ended March 31, 2017:

2017 2016
------ (Rupees in 000) -----
Size of the Fund - Total assets 906,053 866,350
Fair value of investments 885,074 838,730
Percentage of investments made 97.68% 96.81%

40.1 The cost of above investments amounted to Rs.826,727 thousand (2016: Rs.753,643 thousand).

40.2 The break-up of fair value of investments is as follow:

2017 2016 2017 2016
--- Percentage --- --- Rupees in 000 ---
Debt securities 10.70 12.21 96,948 105,771
Government securities 39.67 47.82 359,404 414,303
Mutual funds securities 45.01 33.02 407,810 286,084
Special accounts in schedule banks 2.31 3.76 20,912 32,572
97.68 96.81 885,074 838,730

40.3 The investments out of provident fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of section 227 of the Companies
Ordinance, 1984 and the rules formulated for this purpose.

41. SHARIAH SCREENING DISCLOSURE

Conventional Shariah Compliant Total n
2017 c
---------- (Rupees in x000) -=-------- g
[0}
Short term investments 5,920,527 1,160,142 7,080,669 ©
Bank balances 7,026,411 27,373 7,053,784 c£
®
] O
Other income S
C
a) Profit from bank accounts 351,421 14,295 365,716 e
b) Gain on sale of investments at fair value through
profit or loss 41,416 17,862 59,278
c) Fair value gain on investments at fair value through
profit or loss 108,163 147,276 255,439
d) Dividend income 208,793 2,100 210,893
e) Others including exchange gain on actual currency - 25,007 25,007

Atlas Honda Limited 103



42, EVENT AFTER REPORTING PERIOD
The Board of Directors, in their meeting held on April 28, 2017, (i) approved the transfer of Rs. 1,000,000 thousand (2016:
Rs.830,000 thousand) from unappropriated profit to general reserve and (ii) proposed a final cash dividend of Rs. 18.5 (2016:
Rs.14.5) per share amounting to Rs. 1,913,022 thousand (2016: Rs.1,499,396 thousand) for approval of the members at the
Annual General Meeting to be held on June 19, 2017.

The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017 do not include the effect of the proposed appropriations, which
will be accounted for in the financial statements for year ending March 31, 2018.

43. DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE

These financial statements were authorised for issue on April 28, 2017 by the Board of Directors of the Company.

/" / (ol
WW %‘ - &Q,ES\\e_g
Yusuf H. Shirazi Saquib H. Shirazi

Chairman Chief Executive Officer
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Pattern of Shareholding Additional Information
As at March 31, 2017

Number of Number of

Shareholders. Category Shareholders Shares held Percentage

Associated Companies, Undertakings and Related Parties

Atlas Insurance Limited 1 2,931,728 2.84%

Honda Motor Company Limited 1 36,192,315 35.00%

Shirazi Investments (Pvt) Limited 1 54,220,693 52.43%
3 93,344,736 90.27%

NIT and ICP:

National Bank Of Pakistan Trustee Department 1 26,421 0.03%

IDBP (ICP Unit) 1 762 0.00%
2 27,183 0.03%

Directors, CEO and their Spouses and minor children and Associates:

Mr. Yusuf H.Shirazi & Associates 3 3 0.00%
Mr. Saquib H. Shirazi (CEO) 1 1 0.00%
Mr. Sanaullah Qureshi 1 400 0.00%
Mr. Toichi Ishiyama 1 1 0.00%
Mr. Hiromitsu Takasaki 1 1 0.00%
Mr. Yasutaka Uda 1 0.00%
Mr. Abid Nagvi 1 501 0.00%
Mr. Jawaid Igbal Ahmed 1 1 0.00%
10 909 0.00%
Executives - 0.00%
Public Sector Companies and Corporations - 0.00%
Banks, Development Finance Institutions,
Non-Banking Finance Institutions, Insurance
Companies, Modaraba and Mutual Funds. 5 536,966 0.52%
Individuals 1,517 9,296,230 8.99%
Others 31 200,589 0.19%
Total 1,568 103,406,613 100.00%
Shareholders holding 10% or more voting interest
Honda Motor Company Limited 36,192,315 35.00
Shirazi Investments (Pvt) Limited 54,220,693 52.43

There was no trading in the shares of the Company by Directors, their spouses and minor children.
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Pattern of Shareholding

As at March 31, 2017
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Number of Total

Shareholders Shareholdings Shares Held

556 From 1 To 100 18,355

355 From 101 To 500 101,347

158 From 501 To 1,000 120,875

275 From 1,001 To 5,000 631,599

83 From 5,001 To 10,000 614,151

42 From 10,001 To 15,000 511,924

23 From 15,001 To 20,000 413,092

9 From 20,001 To 25,000 195,137

11 From 25,001 To 30,000 292,777

7 From 30,001 To 35,000 223,861

1 From 35,001 To 40,000 39,245

5 From 40,001 To 45,000 218,254

4 From 45,001 To 50,000 183,289

2 From 55,001 To 60,000 113,726

2 From 65,001 To 70,000 134,423

1 From 70,001 To 75,000 71,562

2 From 75,001 To 80,000 155,503

3 From 80,001 To 85,000 248,042

3 From 85,001 To 90,000 260,874

1 From 90,001 To 95,000 91,071

2 From 95,001 To 100,000 195,751

2 From 110,001 To 115,000 227,696

2 From 120,001 To 125,000 244,698

2 From 125,001 To 130,000 254,154

1 From 140,001 To 145,000 141,100

1 From 150,001 To 155,000 151,715

1 From 160,001 To 165,000 162,011

1 From 175,001 To 180,000 176,841

1 From 195,001 To 200,000 199,459

1 From 215,001 To 220,000 218,625

1 From 225,001 To 230,000 227,627

2 From 245,001 To 250,000 490,956

1 From 275,001 To 280,000 277,566

1 From 415,001 To 420,000 418,230

1 From 490,001 To 495,000 491,833

1 From 515,001 To 520,000 516,600

1 From 1,025,001 To 1,030,000 1,027,908

1 From 2,930,001 To 2,935,000 2,931,728

1 From 36,190,001 To 36,195,000 36,192,315

1 From 54,220,001 To 54,225,000 54,220,693

1,568 103,406,613




Pattern of Shareholding
As at March 31, 2017

Number of
Shareholderss Categor Shares held | Percentage
- gory Shareholders 9
Directors, CEO their spouse and minor children and Associates 10 909 0.00
* Associated Companies, undertakings and related parties 3 93,344,736 90.26
NIT and ICP 2 27,183 0.03

Banks, Development Finance Institutions,
Non-Banking Finance Institutions
Insurance Companies

Modarabas and Mutual Funds 5 536,966 0.53

General Public

Local 1517 9,296,230 9.00
Foreign
Others
Joint Stock Companies 29 199,617 0.18
Cooperative Society 1 971 0.00
Trustee of Iftikhar Shirazi Family Trust 1 1 0.00
1568 103,406,613 100.00

* Note : Included in Associated Companies
Atlas Insurance Ltd. 2,931,728 shares,
Honda Motor Company Ltd. 36,192,315 shares,
Shirazi Investments (Pvt) Ltd. 54,220,693 shares.
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Glossary of Terms

Acronym Description Acronym Description

ACCA Association of Chartered Certified Accountants ICAP Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan
AGM Annual General Meeting ICMAP Institute of Cost and Management Accountants of Pakistan
AHL Atlas Honda Limited IFAC International Federation of Accountants
AHPL Atlas Hitec (Private) Limited IFAS Islamic Financial Accounting Standards

AMP Advance Management Program IFRS International Financial Reporting Standards
ATL Active Tax-payers List ISO International Standardization Organization
B2B Business to Business KSE Karachi Stock Exchange

BOD Board of Director LLB Bachelor of Law
CAGR Compounded Annual Growth Rate LNG Liquefied Natural Gas

CCG Code of Corporate Governance LTD Limited

CDC Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited LSE Lahore Stock Exchange

CDS Central Depository System LSM Large Scale Manufacturing

CEO Chief Executive Officer MOU Memorandum of Understanding

CFO Chief Financial Officer MMC Minor Model Change

CKD Completely Knocked Down MSCI Morgan Stanley Capital International

CNIC Computerized National Identity Card NAV Net Asset Value

CO0 Chief Operating Officer NBFI Non-Banking Finance Institutions
CPEC China - Pakistan Economic Corridor NHC New Honda Circle

CSR Corporate Social Responsibility PBT Profit Before Taxation

DFI Development Finance Institutions PERAC Public Employee Retirement Administration Commission
EOBI Employee Old-Age Benefits Institution PSX Pakistan Stock Exchange

EPS Earnings per Share RCSM Risk and Counter Strategy Matrix

ERP Enterprise Resource Planning - software RMF Risk Management Function

FBR Federal Board of Revenue SAFA South Asian Federation of Accountants
GAAP Generally Accepted Accounting Principles SAP Standard Application Protocol - ERP system
GDC Gravity Die Casting SECP Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
GDP Gross Domestic Product SRO Statutory Regulatory Order

HMC Honda Motor Company SSGC Sui Southern Gas Company Limited
HPDC High Pressure Die Casting TDR Term Deposit Receipt

IAS International Accounting Standards WWF World Wildlife Fund
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The Company Secretary
Atlas Honda Limited,
1-Mcleod Road,
Lahore-54000

PROXY FORM

I/'We

of

being member(s) of Atlas Honda Limited and holder(s) of
Ordinary Shares as per Register Folio No. and / or CDC Participant
I.D. No. and Sub Account No. hereby
appoint
of

or failing him / her
of as my/our Proxy to attend, act and vote for me/us and on my/our
behalf at the 53rd Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held at Falettias Hotel, 24 - Egerton Road, Lahore, on
Monday, June 19, 2017 at 11:00 a.m. and at any adjournment thereof.

As witness my/our hand this day of 2017
signed by the Said in the presence of
(Witness)

. . Affix
(Slgn.ature must agree v.wth the Revenue
specimen signature registered Stamp
with the Company)

Signature
NOTE:

e Proxies in order to be effective, must be received at the Companyas Registered Office/Shares Registrar not less than
48 hours before the meeting and must be duly stamped, signed and witnessed.

e CDC shareholders and their proxies are requested to attach an attested photocopy of their CNIC or Passport with this
proxy form before submission to the Company.



AFFIX
POSTAGE

The Company Secretary
Atlas Honda Limited

1 - McLeod Road,
Lahore « 54000
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